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FESHIFE LA WD - - - (3,533) - (3,533)
SR E LD AP 2 AT 1,869 - 1,869 (6,446) - (6,446)
BETREAWIFE LA
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FEARE REF R
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Aok E g ap(n)
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WA 6 10,029,519 8,916,007
HER A (8,594,772) (7,771,052)
EF 1,434,747 1,144,955
H U A R U= 6 116,245 142,284
HERDHEAY (155,537) (134,328)
TS (697,522) (669,430)
HFS (320,079) (17,787)
BE AR 7 (92,332) (137,172)
BR AR AT R 8 285,522 328,522
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REEREF 157,019 211,914
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BEABEAFEFTAEZMEERAHBRARIEE
N EES) 21 (2,515) 16,170
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(2,006) 14,415
& & — B B 2 7 im i R NE K B) (7 1 - (962)
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AT AL EL
KATIREFE A 803,599 (27,112)
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978,283 (1,660)
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RBEE

FE 18 2,292,404 1,657,535
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FFEIRITEE 25 3,061,696 2,869,848
mBBERE 6,697,683 5,659,603
RBEEFHE 907,768 525,836
HEERRBERS 9,758,504 8,454,313
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LEME - WE&&#HIEE EEFE 8 6,095 12,576
HE—RENB AR ER 8 - 2,048
FEWE 5 R IB R E 8 3,174 509
0188 fE U B 5 5k 18 8 (425) (803)
FERE(BEDR)FE 8 156,445 (930)
ERIELE WA (14,045) (73,732)
VA RR 8 45 5 B AR RE B S 28(a) 6,365 21,001
1,470,932 1,433,679
FEE N (647,924) (98,007)
FEWRE S 5RBR L,/ (38h0) (614,400) 63,819
TERFIE - R REMBKREIER D, (35 n) (146,351) 83,863
FERE SR IBREEIE N, (D) 267,209 (16,543)
Hib e 308 R ERT & A, Okd) 508,542 (32,948)
EEMBRS 838,008 1,433,863
B BIETEH (159,765) (147,550)
BIEINTERL (2,857) (3,743)
BRENR - (535)
EHFILE 9,440 13,506
2RFE (100,859) (146,713)
KEXEBMBReREF5HE 583,967 1,148,828
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BE-T-PEt-AST-ALEE

CEEBIEReRE TR 583,967 1,148,828
BRETENESRE

WY - BEMREEEB (1,070,178) (688,860)
NEFEREEE (92,995) -
HEME - BENKKEHEE TSHIE 3,119 71,519
HE—MHBEQF 1 = 32,586
BRI R IR HRITESR N ERFEZRD () (4,487) 32,576
WEEYIZE ~ BB MR TR RSN (183,072) (66,764)
REEDFARSREFE (1,347,613) (618,943)
RETENESRE

FIGIRTTE R 2,566,869 1,692,030
BEIRTER (1,830,240) (2,031,622)
BEfEE (116,634) (116,634)
PATIE IR B 1T I FT1S 2R 08 27 49,826 -
R SR ET 388 B I (D (178,330) (100,729)
RS B & B 2 f% 8. 29,770 24,246
HENFTEARE IS (2,106) (720)
REREBME (FR)ReREFHE 519,155 (533,429)
BHeRBESEEYHD FEE (244,491) (3,544)
FHHReMEEEEY 1,142,072 1,157,244
[ERE ekl ekt 31,093 (11,628)
FRESRBESEEY 928,674 1,142,072
RERBSEEYEHBIN

Re MIRTTAE R 22 928,674 1,142,072
FAVBIMAREGERERERMBANB S RATEFEY 928,674 1,142,072
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1. 2ARAREEEH
EREREERERARASRASHSTMANINEBRAT - FR » ARAILHEMNBAR (GBI XNEE])
TERFLEERHEECAEERER R FIHREEHERRER - ARAZMMR FEE I BCricket Square
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands °

f B A A&
ARRMEBKHBRAFEENT :

BRTREARL/
HRAY/ARRERDY HRRA  ADREERAES
Best Alliance Holding Inc. A AERNEE(EERRE 52,600,000£7 100% BEZR
&l)/hERA(MERE)) Lak
AEERERAT EBD/mERE 49,777 M9E7T 100% REER
Lk
AMEBEEEMN)BRAF i 52,500,00057 100% 4ERBEEKT
HNARENRABRAR HE 148,500,000£7T 100% HEREEER
(ZF-NE:
108,500,000£77)
ER(RT)EARSERAR" HE 99,000,000%7 100% HEREEER
ZHEBERAR EET/mERE 1,000,000%7 100% EEEZREEDH
LRk
EURAERAR hERE 105,000,008 & 100% HEEZRIEBTH
gk
EMREERAA & 1571 100%  RE-RORRRRE
gk
Mindforce Holdings Limited (Mindforce]) AERGHE/PERE 75,101,000 N% REZR
Lk
BUERRE(RL)ERAR B 25,000,00057T N% LERAEER
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DEREEES @)
MEARER &)
ARRNESHBARFBEMT - (4)

BRIREARS/

B AN 3 itk ARARERSER

BUANRE N BRAAN mE 69,800,057 N%  EERBELR
EERNEEREREERAA i 100,000} 75 100% HEEZRIARTE
RARTEARL)ARAAEE] (MEe) +F 33,000,000 - BERHEEA
EERARAA EET/WERE 3174980057 7%  RERR - BEEKRER
LER FEER
BaBT (L) R B 33,400,000 N%  EEREEERRER
FiER
ETRRERERAF (7)) IERH/MERE 261,758, 2405 T 59.28%  RAER
LEk
TENRRNERAR MERE 475,577, 80047 A 59.08% EERAEES
LER
Compal Precision Module China Holdings Ltd. 2R/ hERE 236,267 92657 50.8%  RARR - HEERR
LiEk e
BERPNICTE) ARAAN B 410,000,005 59.28%  AERHELT
NEBTRE(ER)BRARY B 60,000,00057T 59.08% EERAEES
TH FEEEATHEERAR il 6,000,00057 81.46% EERHEMH
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1. RAAREEER(#)
MELBRER (&)
ARATNEENBRRFEWT (&)

BRTREARS/
AL/ ARRER RS HRRE  AAREERAER
RIAERBERERAF i 80,000,00057T 100% 4EREEKT
A(EE)ETREARAF BE 90,000,000%7 100% HEREEER
REEESTHR(TR)BRAF P 1,000,000%7 51%  AEREEDH
AURETHHEE)ERAR® BE 700,000%7 51%  EEREENH
BEETHRE(EM)ERAT i 165,000,00057 100% 4EREEKT
(ZF-1%:
145,000,000£77)

* BB BEEPIE M AN EEE QR
A AABEERE

ERINHARRESRAUTEEFAXEFLIBFEABNAKEEEFEEABA ZARRNBLR - EFRR - WRED
HAHE R RNFEHERERBNITE -
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DEREEES @)
MEAREN @)
ARRNESHBARFBEMT - (4)

GG

(a)

HE—RHE A

RZZE-—NAFUNA+NE  ALEEBERHGNE2HBRAEZARESNKEARK39,557,0007T(HHER
46,027,000 C) HEFEILE=F °

BHEZEEFE
W - BB MR 14 34,570
FREEE 15(a) 1,420
e 16 1,497
BekIReEED 13,441
FEMFUE - e MEMERGE 146
H bR IB R EET B (516)
50,558
TERRINE R B) ) H A 1 (2,483)
48,075
HE—REQRMNER 8 (2,048)
46,027
LATB A ER -
Be 46,027

ATREREE-—RNBARZRENRSEEM ZRANFESN

—E-hF
FET

HeRE 46,027
BHEZHEeNRSEEY (13,441)
HRENE—FNBARZRERREEEBEM A TR 32,586
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57

MR E X
HZEMBBRDREELGTMAG([EEGMAE ) BHNEBWHRE L ([ FEMBRELEN] - &
FEEMEEEMBHEER FESHEN(EESHER D RRE) BELERMANSTRAURER
NENRBI W EREMARE - WEBRERRAELRANEGRR - ERARE AR HEFE - ZFHHREK
RABTT(ET) 2% - MERERBIN - AEBEDSNBEREIZ T -

mEREE
GAMBRELEARARANBANBE-S-BF T A=+ BILFENMERE - WEAAHEA
AREREEANER (REEBLER) - $AKEARNA RS RERAR N EHEETEE
% - URB R RBR A A ANEN (DR T ARERA NS HIEE R DEREDORAERN) T
YERSERY - AAEEESITHE -

HARBERIEEBEERRE QAL BREEIALUEN - AIRFEAKBHRRERRZEEARNE -
AEEgZERE—UEBFERER - 81

() HEFRREATNEMKREEFAANGORY
(b) EHBENLHELNEN K&
(0 AEENREERNEERTE -

fIERREARRBNMEHRROBEHARMER - WRA -HEFTERRER - HBARNXERAKEEUSE
Iz AR GEAR LREGE A AREZSERRELEZBRIE

B R AR ERASER DS BEAREEE ARG A RIS - BV MR & SRS
Bt - EEERNATRNZEERAR - #2% WA BEXREAEEREAANISEB2 R RE
AR E B2 BUES -

RIEEHFE - —HNBAR AR AENEE) (L ARREETE) REEX AR -
WARBERES —FHMBARZZEHE @ MEBHERRONZMBRARZEE(RERE) RAE - ()EA3HE
iR REER (IR EENRCE Bt R EH - MEROMBREZAFE - (IRBEEREZ QT

BERiBEEPEAELES 2 BHHEE - TAREMEHRERAER 2 ARBERGEODER D ERE
aRBEN(RAERES) EEENARBEERHEAREENBERIRENEERR -
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31 B BRREEZEH
AEEDRAFE 2B BRRERRR =T\ FHFHREH TR (RER]) R TIEE ] B EMBR

g -
BB R R B35 (153 A) 2HEH

FEMBRELNESR - FEGTERIEIN HEFEFUAE
REBMBREERETHE(ERTA)

R BHEENE 165 (EFTA) H201978 M & (COVID-19) 1 9 2 B & (R R A)
FREGEANEVRLETB G EREH BEANESE
(1E5TA)

BB SERRBEGERF 1R RELSTERFR(ETAN) 2HERFEHIIN T

() BURERSINEEVBRE LMREHEZBEMRS - BRHESIAHMBERRIBRESE BN ST
BER - WREB T EINERLREER - ISERCRBRAERMSUHREZHELS - 6H
HUBEREERBBEZHESINREER BB ENMER NERRE - HNEFEE - BENMFED
BEMERPBHRE AR - OERLIES—RER - AEFEE 2 EZE LR Z#R%
ME - MOERTEBHARE P HRARRRELEATE -

(o) FBESFERFVELFBGIERESR(EFTN) RERNMRHRANER - REFTE @ WAUSERE
R - BRIREEMNEEHATEERYBERRFE-—RENZEIEEREEN BRI BHREREL
ZRE - RIZERREX - ZFEFEE @ EAMIRRNEERZMEXESHE - ZFBTLEHAK
SEZHMBRRARRBELEEATE -

R b RERT B EMBREENH U EW BRI L BEAUBEE
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32 EBEMEERERZEBYRREER

59

AREBI BRZENBEHRRAEALATERMERRER I LB EEHHERELER

BRYBREEEIRUEFTA) B HEZE 2 1A
BEMBHRELNEN BAGE  FEEFRAE—F R
AIF395% - BB B MEERFT
5 BEMBHREERNEARLREEM
BREERF 1698 (EFTA)
FEMBGHRERNE10RNBBGNE KREFHABLNFINA SN A ZBNEELE2TE
AIF285 (—F——F) (BFTX)

BV BRELNE17R RER B #P

FEMBHREENE17HRUEFTA) REREHP©

BB EENEIRUERTA) BEDERBEAIRZIFRTE

BFEGERE 165 (EFTA) YE - BES KRG - RIFBUE 2 H1.Z i 07>

FEEHEREITREFTA) ET1E B #I—E K B #) 2 AR
BB BHREERN —F—\FE-F- HEMBHREERE R BEMBHREERIESR - BEMBR
FTFEER 2 FRNE HEAF16RARMBHD L EE G ERIBARIERT A2

RZZ-—F—-A—-Basz ARz FEHARBER

N-B-—F—- A Bz &Ria 2 FEREEX

MNIB-=F—-A—Hkz &Mz FEHREX

HAREERSIEAER S - R TERA

ERBERBEHENF1IRETRNGER - BERBEESTUYBHRRZEW —EANG B ERETEZ I EHENZ
oyl 3 B s

¢ ERN_Z T+ ARBZEBUBHMESLRENTREFTAONER N2 _=F - —RBZARmFEHME -
EEMBRELNFASRERLERT  MERAFRBARAEBSH LN EISRMIETBH BIMEEFE R 2 B
#He

voos woN =

BHSERARNARE 2SRV HHREEAAE — PERN XX -

28
MRENZRN BB TGN - MINZERTEEA G  RARNBEHRTEEREEZRE - AEN
BIEZERTEETCEERRERANNAIGEECRE - ZFEMBEBERA/EREAEZENR - ZFE
R-E-_=F—-A-Bd2BRABZFERRBEN - YREWER - AFFIRFEM - RFEIERTEER
KE M HRFERTMNEATE -

ARG EAFIRUETN)BEBERABLERRDIFRBNRE - XFEFHH  HWEBTEEEAR

2D W

AEBEARN G LR E M ERERAIHET REEFT BBV BREEINOTE - M H REEHEXEH] SEERT
FEMBGHREEANGTHEYBRALMBRREREATE -

ERERZRBRAT  F3 2020



3.3

BF 75 R AR B

—EF-FF+ZA=1+—H

BT EEREME
EBasREE
EBEHIABEEZAKR - BRZARENARBE AN FHENE  ZoFEAAREEZENEERKER
HOATE AEEEREBET 2AEEA AAENRE - RSB EIT AR 7 26l R R A
HBM - LERBAMmE KElT“%ﬁ@?ﬁiﬁ&%%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁZﬂ%%ﬁ&%@ FTERIE
TRt n (BREREA 2 #Ea ANERRERB AR IEEEFE) - EBEMIHEHI R
IR AFEFE - EE ZWHBHEBKAGT AR -

EMBEN-—RIEBMNEERRE —BYAFRAERHENERERRNBALEERFE - AREREC
W TS -

EAKEBEERSE - AREAQES  WEAHZEERREMABRTE SR 2EREENAEZSREA
BETHEREEDBLER  EREREARAITETARRKREL 2 ETE00H -

WEBEHOEBETT - RAHA ZREDREBER 2 A FEENTE - MAEEZ el BBNER
NHER

m%%%%%%%z&@&%&%%%%ﬁ%E@$@%; ﬁﬁfﬁ?%%FZ&ﬁﬁ{B§@¥@ﬁ
RHEREBNERER - DBEARDECIARER /Ei%ﬁ;ﬁrg MmERGEE AtEm

BEETIZKATE - IEERANRE - SHERIFHEHI R AR E TR A R U E 7 B T AT E
R BAMKERBNEEFELMAEAGENERE - WAKEREMERERAEBEEFENQ
B RHEREZESESRBEAER R EWE R -

RERERE  BEDARNEEMRBERRTE - 8BFHSEABRERE LR RENMEFFRIFR
SEFURNREERBORER - AEHERAENER - ARERNSF+ A=t BREFBETRERNR -
SREARANE  REFAHEBOREFSEREEYE  TEEENXERAGHNBRERENAEERR
SELABUR—HERSELSEN  FRAKENEBEEXRERETENREZFT B HZAEL -

BEDAFEEREEANRSELEM(—ARSELENAIKLSEMERE - MWReELEM(—A
ReELBM)WAINESBEERKEE @ ASRRMERE - s EER0RESR TR ERBREER -
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61

EBastREEE)
HAZRETHRERGEABM(A—HEREELEM)N O MEAELNBOZHRLE - RIEFHER
BERNBESNETHLERBRTAZEBNEREREAR - EZFHEN THENEEDREE LS X/
AEELIRENREELEURDTE -

ATEHE

ARBREREAREA T BARARE - AFETREEATHS RE MR AR RSP EAER
ISR B A RO © AT RAEROBRAL S AERHRARNR IR AELE EHES
TBRTT - AWTFEEEDS  ARYAERRERABTNTETRT - EBORBAENNTISUA
AEEETRANTS - BRTSSRELESEERTRTE - WAELRROAFEN RFRAORE
B S E AAEN R ETEE AL -

FERMEEQATENFEATS2EENEERSEBEARERNEGEREEIKEEE THUANEESS
BEMZEREEREENTS2EENELLBENEAEE

AEEFERERRTRBRNGETE  MEARHBBEAIHRAELFE  UEENAREIIBEREARE
MEERMER T BREGARE

ERHRNFEHEBEBEANKESERARE  RUBERRAAEIRBEATFENABEERBEDR
XA A FESRDSE

F—& —  EREREESRBERERENSZRECRERE)
E_® - ARV EERIEERBERHAVEFEBEANSKESRBABBENMGET A
E=& - ERTAEBERYQAVEFEBEANKEFRBABIENEEDX

WEERMHERERPEINEERAEMNT @ ARERBNSREMREF AL B(ERYAFE
BEEANRESCBABB)BEESLRAITTHRES -

tEE

ik
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33 FESHHEME®)
FERMEERE
WERSBRERREXAREE (MERFE  EERREERSREE)ETFERENRE - QI
BENAWEESHE - BEFINESRREESXRCELBUNEREBERAFERLERAN(UREERE)
metE - HERNBEMBE  BRIFFREETEELCRARE EBYNEMEEREERRINRESR
A HEEERT > AIRESEREEMEMNRSELEMMEE

BEBREREERAEBRR KO SREFER - RHEREER @ At ARRRARER AT RRRE TS
AENEREREEREESTRARORAMBEXMRERE - REBEREENECRERTHEERESR
FELNRE — B R SR AR BN FIRR -

REBRERRAFEEERRBRETHANHEEETBFEXRDRY - WAZIRFHE - BlfEE Al dkE
T o BEBRNEE(FMERINREBRESNANEELXEEA KL B MG BREE - EREE
MBI SERBRATFELEREERDNEEBEMESNROEGIREMTE ) - AEBEY
BOREEHEFARER ©

W% > BMERREBETE

ME -~ BELRE(EZIRRINERARZANTEREDREBEAR - WX - BELREEENKEES
REBEENMSEEER TR KB ERE G T BEREERE

ME  BELRREREREREENFAX(WHERRE) - —RRELPHEBEBRRRR - HEEZKERIR

% X BRENAXHBEFZEEZRAEFEAENER - [MYX  BEARBNEAMLOATKER
AREERABRLED SEAREERFRNBLEEYHHFHARITE -
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HEVMEEE REEASSE105F
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9% -~ BEMKEEE ARG TRNAERFY @ BENKANZEEERSEEEE D - MBI BT
E - MREE  IEBFHERAENEELOREVREE R AR (HER) -
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WE - BELRERE (BREEREIZEMERIED)NHEXBHARERNHENFTELLBEN R
BREAAR NIBHEREENFEANCESRERNLERRENEMNRBEEERSRBFREFHE
EREENZR °

ERIRELERERILCENET  BELEBMEMYE - BMERXBEE - BRARTARERBBA
B BATIHE  -AABEEE 2R REMASENEERAS  URERILCEMHBBEENERL
EERAN - EZTRENRIARREENNEEVE - BELRENEEER

HE
AEBRATLAHBFIEERANRESTEEXNEEHE - MAOEE —TBERN - AR — R R H 7] &
AEENERAERNRE  AIZAN - BHEExBE —HEE -
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(a)

(b)

(c)

EREEE
EREEENEERG A NERIEEEENHEMRA) o ERREERKAREMA R ITE L EMA
MEEEE - UENERAEEEAGELHE - EAEEENKABRENHG A RN Z A2

ROHERE FEENBEREZNAMBENFTHEMNERRNEEES - EREEEREERR
EEFAE R FHNEEE AREREHRITEN T

+ b3 R 504F

BNEN Y ES 1234

RE 3%

HEEE

HEaEREERRE RSN EERRERMNHEENFTIRERR - BEMNFEEETNF(BIEEE

BElE N F)REREEESER -

R ERENFWRER  REEMENNEXTERINGET @ AEEeRNEERKEMEREEERE
FAE - REMAHRE  HERENSRESIEN - LKA SAE NN EENFIEL IR < o
HEEHREE - HENFESH (P REHIMNEE S ENRKEENRED) LEEHBEE
MHEZE - AIgEFtEHERENEEE -

EHHEREEEEEEE

HRHEEMARG AMES 12EASAAREBEERNERRAENELREEE - ARERBEH
HERAHR - I AEETEREEEEEHERARENEAREAREENHARKBEE -
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RNFETRIAR A 128,503 116,608
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11.

89

ERE)
RRAARREEKRESHBARGMAEEEREAERRATTENRTIDET, (BB NRERS (EE)
(N TF16.5%E25%)(ZF—NF : 16.5%225%) ' ERFEEREFENHER S (Be)HROT ¢

—ECEF

R (FHBRI)

THT
BRELRDEF, (EE) (33,543) 358,436 (39,371) 285,522
BEEMRETERNTIE (5,535) 89,609 (7.874) 76,200
BEE = (17,655) = (17,655)

B R LA B 2 BN EATH 18

TR = 11,211 (43,004) (31,793)
BRBFBA (399) (12,175) (1,036) (13,610)
AR A 5,934 43,765 3,965 53,664
RIER 2 HIBEE = 47,153 = 47,153
RIER e =5 - = 14,417 14,417
EHApb — 127 = 127

BAEEEERHERTEN
FRIERY(E%e) — 162,035 (33,532) 128,503
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11.

FR&®L (40

—E-NF

Bt 75 #R R BT =

—E-TFtZA=1+—H

B (F RSN

TAT

BRE RIS (E1E) (60,445) 462,600 (73,633) 328,522
REEBEGFERRIE (9,973) 115,650 (14,726) 90,951
BEMRE - (4,622) 38 (4,584)
B A HRfE 2 BVERFR 18

T - 9,385 (28,839) (19,454)
BEHRBA (504) (10,043) (181) (10,728)
AT R 2 10,477 7,486 1,659 19,622
KRR 2 BIEEE - 15,115 - 15,115
RERZEGRFERR - - 25,054 25,054
HAth - 632 - 632
BRAREBEREBETED

BIERY(ER) - 133,603 (16,995) 116,608
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11.

12.

13.

91

Frig®ie)
RIEE-TTN\F—A-BRERNPECENERE - ACER—IR25% BB -

RER T ——F L ATIBENIH2011]585% » EXFEAMEKRINCETZERFEIALBRZS
BTXRBE] > HOEMERTEEMER DT ERERLF15% °

ER(WDEREHERARRAARTNIIENMBAR - KIE(ZEBE)EFRERERAR R -EEFRIE
(BE)ERARRARFAREETHOMELRR  REIEXBEROE R IEBITREEMEALEMRS
HEBEHEI5% °

[ 9=)

EHEAHRE—EREBERI0BI(ZZE—NE - 10581) 120,001 116,634

AEEZZBRPPEAFARBARRREREBRBFEASG LHETAEE -

AKPAREFEABEERER
BRERZFSEIRBEARFERNRQARERE AEGREH 130,506,000 (=F— N4 : 145,913,000/%
TO) RARFERE B BITERRNE T H8862,413,185 (ZF— L4 : 920,097,876/t HE - N BIERER
D REE B A 2 RD -

EREERNSEIORBEAFEARRRRERAE ARG EF130,506,0008 7L (=ZF—N4F : 145,913,000/
TO)ETE - BERTENAFEE R BT R 2 N T198052862,413,185AK(—ZF — L4 : 920,097,876/%) -
ETBERBROEEEFE 2RY - HRAEFESRERRIOMETHEER - MAREEEEE
NEBRESEEBTEALTBREABEREAZTHETER 2 METHER17,449,328R(ZF— N F :
5,808,914%) o
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B RS AR MY A

—E-TFtZA=1+—H

14. N% - BERRHE

B #B
RBAERE HE
THT THT
ZE-EF+-A=+-H
RZE2-FF—-f—H
A 4,400,721 7,544 8,368,894 1,362,442 10,169 288,844 14,438,614
ZHTERAE (1,571,881) (2,219)  (4,683,146)  (999,419) (7,415) - (7,264,080)
REFE 2,828,840 5325 3,685,748 363,023 2,754 288,844 7,174,534
RZE-ZF-A—H HMKE
SHTERRE 2,828,840 5325 3,685,748 363,023 2,754 288,844 7,174,534
AE 9,372 291 57,025 27,119 1,485 1,050,177 1,145,469
@i 132,704 - 608,840 91,001 1,035 (833,580) -
HE /i (11) = (5,039) (1,377) (79) (2,708) (9,214)
FRITERE (198,799) (638)  (531,531)  (199,550) (823) - (931,341)
STk 178,803 131 217,827 50,040 278 31,774 478,853
WZE-TFE+-A=1+-8
Nh2HTE LA 2,950,909 5109 4,032,870 330,256 4,650 534,507 7,858,301
R-E-FE+-A=1+-H:
A 4,832,762 8,020 9,522,906 1,596,102 12,903 534,507 16,507,200
ZHTERAE (1,881,853) (2,911)  (5,490,036)  (1,265,846) (8,253) - (8,648,899)
REFE 2,950,909 5109 4,032,870 330,256 4,650 534,507 7,858,301
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14. W% - BERK#HE®

HE Gl - 2B
EST 2 LIAER
THEL B THET
“E-RAE+ZA=1+-H
RZE—N&—A—-A8:
A 4,450,062 6,673 8,262,651 1,336,290 11,312 195,729 14,262,717
ZEIMERAE (1,428,114) (1,609)  (4,275,974) (820,854) (8,102) - (6,534,653)
FEEFE 3,021,948 5,064 3,986,677 515,436 3,210 195,729 7,728,064
R-Z-NE—A—8 KR
SMERAE 3,021,948 5,064 3,986,677 515,436 3,210 195,729 7,728,064
NE 9,304 846 81,468 31,666 253 587,424 710,961
&% 71,041 - 310,589 99,303 251 (481,184)
HE /M (1,418) - (27,484) (47,096) (208) (7,889) (84095)
HE—FRMB LR (FE1) (19,038) - (15,483) (49) - - (34,570)
FRNERE (200,668) (602) (586,200) (219,872) (690) - (1,008,032)
AR (52,329) 17 (63,819) (16,365) (62) (5,236)  (137,794)
WZ_E-NEF+-A=+—-H "
Nk RTELRE 2,828,840 5,325 3,685,748 363,023 2,754 288,844 7,174,534
R-Z-NF+-A=+-1:
5% 4,400,721 7544 8368894 1,362,442 10,169 288,844 14,438,614
ZEHMERAE (1,571,881) (2,219) (4,683,146 (999,419) (7,415) - (7,264,080)
FEEE 2,828,840 5325 3,685,748 363,023 2,754 288,844 7,174,534

RZBEZFF+-_A=+—8  AEEURPERBEE®FEL21,140,00087L( == — L4 : 20,720,000
BILNBET LW REFE FUIERRE - LEAREBME—RFTEENERMITE25) °

NRZZE-ZEF+-_A=+—H - B@EFEEFEE186,695,0008 T (ZFE—1F : 166,616,000/ 0805 T

FTNFEEE#RIFFDERET - EFRR  AKEEZESHEB L NET OEEXEZERBE - AKX
AEESEES Y BPEE L ERBAIRREERTRET ZMARER -
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—E2-TF+=-A=+—H

15. HE
AEBEAEREA
AEERETRANCLHRATYE « BHE  RERNATSEIERESY - MHHEEARBN —E%E
WEETRE R AMSOFEMMAE i - W TS REEL+ RSN IERSENT - BASYEAENRES
BEE2EAZIAACE  MAEMHEENREA3F - HERBATEENHESHATANRESNES
&S AR EERE

(a) EREEE

AEERFREREEENREENESMOT

RZE—nF—H—H 566,727 13 272 567,012
NE - 5,083 - 5,083
HE—FHBAR (MEE) (1,420) - - (1,420)
TERX (12,897) (573) (105) (13,575)
b & (10,905) - 1 (10,904)

R-ZE—NAF+-_A=+—HK

—E-FTE—A—A 541,505 4,523 168 546,196
NE 92,995 707 = 93,702
EMRX (13,972) (2,035) (107) (16,114)
PE 37, o & 40,782 = = 40,782
RoZE—Z=&#+—-A=+—H 661,310 3,195 61 664,566

RZZEZZF+_A=+—H  A5EUTEERETMLHER  (FAREEMERITEENER(Z
T-NFE) -
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15. HE#)
REBEREBAE)
(b) HEBE

REFREERENRIERESINT

»—A—8 4,724 287
s 707 5,083
FAERERIGF S, 163 71
(NEN (2,269) (720)
P& R 10 3
R+=—A=+—H 3,335 4,724
DA

mENE o 2,155 1,764

EMENEL 1,180 2,960

HERBZIH AT RERMBHRERMEIT7 -

() HEBRGTHEIAEBEBMNNTRENT

HEBENFE 163 71
FREEENE 16,114 13,575
REHARE(FHBEER - FT+A=+—B= 2%

R)IBEENAXZ(REETRERAS) 2,092 2,821
ERHEREEEENAZ(REETHRERAT) 117 78
RIBRAERHBESEE 18,486 16,545
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15. #HE&E#)
AEBEEBEBEAE)
(d) i@z

AEBEHEREANBERILEEE - ERECUXFTERRETHRE NEHEIHEEEMALE
BHH o WEAREENERBETRERF B - MERRERRETEL LEERROHRARN KRR
EBEBRESHEINWT

S TENR I RERE
AFERNEN A = 69

() FEMES MM Y KN E B OFRRBE 7S BIET T REN H31(0)33(0)
B -

AEBEAHEA

AEERBELHELTHBHEBOMELEEHE - BEKFBREERBELINRES @ UREERNTES
IEFEL FHAFR S R - REBRFREROESIAE24,643,0000( —ZF— N4 : 25,625,000 7T)  &F
BHR Y REHT5E6 ©

RoB-TE+- A=+ B - AR SRS S A0 T T A R R R ek e R B R K
mF -

—FR 24,795 22,418
—FARERMENAA 21,057 21,957
MEFEABER=ZFLR 20,119 19,578
= FABEREFER 19,959 18,128
EABERAEFAR 20,245 18,281
MERT 118,978 109,853

225,153 210,215
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16. BHE
FHExT
R-E—NF— A —HOKANEETFE 53,985
HE—EME AR (FFE) (1,497)
R-ZE—-NF+-_A=+—H08 —ZE-ZTF—A—BER-_Z-ZTF+-A=+—HK
AN K BREFHE 52,488

97

B R AR

BEEBAHMUENEE  CHORELEMEEECANERUZRSELEMAERERR -
FENMBEECALERBRFTRSEEEUNA REFRERREEREEET - EREERRREEEEL
ENTFHPBIRNERRSRERAFE - REREBVAUMEANIERER16% (ZF—NF 1 16%) L
B AFHRRSRENERE[26%(ZF—NF :3%) °
RZZFZZF+_A=+—BR-ZFT-NF+_A=1T—0 G ELEMHEECALERBTRASES
BUNEAEER  ERAETERR U THAEEERARNAABERENRERERIMKENS TR
&%

FRRENE - BEEERANEMNEMEEEENEE H RERFANFEA —FRENHFHENE - YEHE
IR e T MR TS R ML L5 -

B E — P MRRIR R A RET IR AT M R AR BRI E AL A R E AR o

ARRIEZRA  EUZERINIASEAEEDE I SEIRELFUN AT RLESBEREK@E -
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17.

Bt 75 #R R BT =

—E2-TF+=-A=+—H

ELERIE
EEHEEE
KN B & FE
EBURA M EE
THT
RIE—NF—H—HRNBEEHBEEE 64,998 5,660 70,658
FRMBREERAEEREBFIEN) (7,755) (38) (7,793)
PE 3 5 & (1,094) (117) (1,211)

R-ZE—NF+-_A=+—BER_Z-_ZTF—H—

HOARRETRTEE = 56,149 5,505 61,654
FRFABRRNOELERIAE (1) - 2,208 2,208
P& 5, % 3,738 491 4,229
R-ZE-ZF+ - A=+ HNRELHEEE 59,887 8,204 68,091

R B A AR B K BE EE AR 49663,033,00008 0( —Z — L4 ¢ 531,998,000 0 ) MM KER - YR —ERHF
AEH - USRS LS ENMB AR B REREEHN - AR AR L EERTEF K EHRIES
B M ERZSERBRELHBEE -
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17. EZEFHIE &)
FEREBEE RS

EERELYE
FTAEMEEY
AHBRARES

KEMBARE HELWATE
£ W ATERE e
FiBT FiBT

R-T-NF— A BOERENREA

afE 439 - 60,000 60,439
FRMBEEROELERIE(ME11) 1 - - 1
FAIBRER A IEERIA - 1,755 - 1,755

R-ZE—-NFE+-_A=+—HBK=Z

—EFE-A-HOERERIBARE 450 1,755 60,000 62,205
FRFTAERELETRIE = (509) - (509)

R-Z-ZF+ - A=+—HHRE
EREEE 450 1,246 60,000 61,696

REBFPBELEMEVE - SLAIBEREETIRKEANHBIAERL ZINE XA EBURI10% AN - BREE
REB-_TTNF-A—BRBER  WEAR_TTLF+_A=+—"HBRAELZERN - MhBEAREEI
BigEEMBRIEER ZHMEANBEBRHRBEENHR RN - it - XEBARZSN T B AEERZ
MMBARR —ET N\F-A—-AEELZBNMOIKZBESEIH
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17. EEBIEZ)
EEBIEEEE)
RZZZZF+-—A=+—H0  BEZSRAPEREXRIONBARELZBREZEAHE(HEERBEAE
W RER) 4851 493,220,631,0008 0 (= ZF — NLF : 3,069,410,000/87C) - EERE ~ ARG A EHIREZE
BEREBERRE - At AFECZE(EF R RAER AR RBEREZENA Y - WHRARGRFPEX
BoE A 37 8O B BB R B g B AE Y BRI T 20 IR SR B 1 2R ) i 74 T FE R AR AR FE T ) TE IR iR 8 IR E B I8 -

ARBAEBRRENREEAEHLEZE

18. 7#E&

EEYR 533,468 281,836
RS 830,029 624,869
2R 674,690 567,985
1B KRR 254,217 182,845

2,292,404 1,657,535

19. BWEZKIEA

FEE 5508 3,980,850 3,148,870
DERIE] (5,083) (1,909)
3,975,767 3,146,961

AEEFMGETEER RN FEOKREI120K < BREZRIBNTNE - AEEL B ZFHERFTE EMEA
M EMEERRS -
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19. EBWEZFHIEE)
REBEHER  AEEREZAHREEREFETENERE S REERSTNOT -

3 AW 2,704,435 2,317,879
4Z61E A 1,078,759 818,294
7& 1218 A 192,573 10,788

3,975,767 3,146,961

FEWE SRR ENERBERESEINT

FH) 1,909 1,400
B (FI7ES) 3,174 509
FUR 5,083 1,909

RZZF-_FTHE+-_A=+—8  BEREENIEBRIZ6(EA R E 5 RIRIZ IR -
R-ZB-NFE+-A=1+—0  BEEFEEZNDHEREREEBEX LA SREREEBERILMNMAE -
REERE B RERRBERETRESN - UtERREEEE - BEXDEXRAERUBEEANEE
BEFENDANBHREME - Lt ERMRIAXINESER - ERBELINRE BRI SNEHBESSE

SRR RARREBEGFTRANGERAEER - —RME @ BAESRERBMEB —FRME A%
HITTIERIR -

101 ERERZRERDT  FR 2020



Bt 75 #R R BT =

—E2-TF+=-A=+—H

19. BEREZREE)
UTEHIEBAEEEKE 5208  EFRREBERNEERARNER -

R-ZE-EH+-A=+—H

12318 A 4AZ61EAR 7E12{8R8

JEHEEEER 0.07% 0.02% 8.56% 0% 0.13%
BRmEAE(TET) 3,299,099 650,487 30,894 370 3,980,850
R EEEE(TET) 2,309 130 2,644 = 5,083

R-Z-NAF+-A=+—H

%60 2

12318 H 4% 618 A 7Z212{8H

JEHEEEER 0.06% 0.02% 5.51% 19.73% 0.06%
BREAE(THIT) 2,681,855 463,818 2,974 223 3,148,870
FEHEEEE(TEIT) 1,608 93 164 44 1,909

20. FENFIE - REREMEWREIE

TE A 81,560 53,713
e REAEWGIAE 288,735 151,334
370,295 205,047

BRtA LSRN SR EE TN BRFGCEIANSENRKFIAER - AREEERLSEAKEB
EEBLSRREBRABRLENA MG - BRIEXGERE - URBREEIRT AR IT R MR TR (0
ER) M-E_ZF+_A=+—ARZZE-AF+ A=+ ANBEHEEBEFEAMTEN -
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21. BEEREBEAFEFARMZEBRANREIRE

EERRAPESAHMZERANRSIRE
B EMBAEE - ZAFE
THEPHZ AR A A 24,218 26,841

HRAEERAZREBNRBMEE - DR RANRE S N B E AR A FEFARMBEZEEA -

HE - Z - ZF+ - A=Z+—HIFE AEBEFARAFTESAHEMB2ERANBRAIKREREES
2,515,000 ( ZF— N4 : #U83516,170,000567T) » WHRHM 2 E WSS F AR °

p=I1

EEAR  BEAEAFEAAREGEARANBARERRTERNRERNRR T _@ARER - Bt - %
RENBERERMBARKRAIERBEE -

KU BHRRERER - AEEN EHBRARE 2 HIHEENR23,234,00087T °

103 ERERZBREMRAT  F# 2020



22.

23.

Bt 75 #R R BT =

—E2-TF+=-A=+—H

RERBREEEMECSEFRZRHRITELR

Be MRTTH S - BIERA R TE3E AN TESRFER 966,985 1,175,896
B BIRTR M SR B IR T A B (38,311) (33,824)
BeE MRS FEY 928,674 1,142,072

ARB(TARBDARPBEANATAIEHRLREY - & SE D P BEAHA S BEBATE LRSI HRER -
FHRERBEMEIHARBESELFERRSZIETEL @  SEFELNSETIEEBBHRAT LR - ¥
WEMARZHRAARESFERBN LB R, KEFRRIORS KRS FEYL A424,847,0008 L (ZF—N,
£ 1 515,041,000/ 7T) °

RITBESREBAFROTERMNFZIDNERDANE - ERERFHRPRS—RE=ZEAR - BFAEENH
R EFRME » WAREAEHE RF R RREAE - RITESRMEEREFREF OB L EELNLE
BIEMRIFRIIRTT ©

ERESRERERE
ENESFTETRE » B—REROE120K4EH -

R|ERR - AEBREZAMFENENESRBERERREONOT

(AN 1,144,505 862,024
4Z=6{E A 238,825 186,652
721218 A 10,047 9,465
BiE1F 6,136 6,555

1,399,513 1,064,696
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24, HMEMNREREFTER

EEWA (FTEE26) 873 14,747
aHEaE 39,436 41,151
H At JE - FRIE 657,391 437,172
A ERA 550,658 368,775
[EETERA 857,938 704,521

2,106,296 1,566,366

* BHRBEEBTFHERMMEIBIK

A

cR_F-NF-A—B  AHAEMEHNR35097,0008T - R_FT_TF -

BRAEBERD(ZZT—NF B EZRFERAFEEEN T MEPURROTEEFORD (ZF—F - IR -

““ HAb e FIRTEFIE -

25. FTERITEE

BERAI= BIRFIE
(%) (%)
TR
IREIER - = = 3.57 2020 584,025
HAIRITE R 0.70-2.58 2021 3,061,696 1.40-4.43 2020 2,285,823
3,061,696 2,869,848
I E
IREIER 1.45 2022-2025 1,364,528 3.57 2021 584,025
HAIRITER 1.40-3.19 2022-2027 66,423  1.40-3.31 2021-2027 320,974
1,430,951 904,999
4,492,647 3,774,847
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25.

26.

Bt 75 #R R BT =

—E2-TF+=-A=+—H

SFERITEE @)

EH
—FR 3,061,696 2,869,848
F_4F 196,108 896,973
FZERF(REERERE) 1,232,598 4,403
BB AF 2,245 3,623
4,492,647 3,774,847
B3t

(a) AREEETRITERATIIEB (ERER

(i

of

WMEHKR  AEERPERBRE T L REFIEE - BREFEA21,140,0008 70 ( ZZF — 14 1 20,720,000
)i

e

S
JC
(i) RIMERR - AARIRMEES £53,334,658,0008 L (=T — NF : 3,177,447,000770) F A Bl HER -

(b) REB BEEE A4,042,987,00008 7T ( ZZ— fL4F  3,663,049,000# ) ~ 25,019,000 7T (= Z — SL4F : 33,365,000/ 7T )
424,641,000 70 (= F—N4F:78,433,000870) 2 RITEAR D RILAET([ET]) - HaB(HEB D RAREARERNL -

EFEW A

BB A4 SR A RV IRE A (i) - 14,081

B B 8 7E TS BT 1l B B R RO IR IE A (ii) 47,767 36,312

Rt ZA=1+—HBrkRAEE 47,767 50,393

mE R (H5E24) (873) (14,747)

FEREED D 46,894 35,646
WisE -

(i) BERAERBIE =T ER BB E TEERBOERN - AERREE -

(ii) BAERASE AR ERFEAER LS THBRRERBEEMSOBAHER
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27. B
g

SEERA

2,000,000,000% &R E1EO. 178 7T 5 200,000 200,000
BT MR

1,200,008,4458 ( == —LF : 1,166,342,445/%)

FRREEO. 17 TR 120,001 116,634

ARRARBA R G ER 2 EFamT :

EBITER
E{E0. 178 TTHY

REOBE R RER
FHR T FHR

T-NE—A—H  —FT-A%F
+ A=+—BR-F-TF—A

—A 1,166,342,445 116,634 85,267 201,901
AT R AR B 1T AR D (PR EEG)) 33,666,000 3,367 46,459 49,826
B E B RO BN E - - 56,193 56,193
R-TE-_TF+-A=+—8H 1,200,008,445 120,001 187,919 307,920

(i) REZE-ZZ-_TF+-A=1+—RHILFE  AQARREBEANQARZBREAZTEERE - UER1.48B L2 BRITERE
%174 433,666,000/ 117 - EEA4EIE £ R (B A49,826,0005% 7T (FIBR B 52 A ) 31T F IR EE0. 178 7T 33,666,000 A% A%
19 o RIERXIEEITER - A2056,193,000/8 TR ARE ME BN RN EERERMDEER -

B
AR BIBAHERT 8 KPR H BB B E N M IR M 528 -
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28. MR EHENET 2!

(a)

RS E

ARR)R BB EI([FTE)) - BMERABAREKRDEEFLE ﬁfjkE’J/\éfff&%Eﬁ%katﬁ@J&
B - FENAERZEERRARRER(BREBIFATES)  AREEMER AEEEYH
REHER  AEEEF  MARERHEME  FEIHORMXENAL - AEE $&$E.nu
AASBEENREERAEAARENEREIARELERNZESE -

B HERIZFT BT R HHRITEBRER B TER TFER AR AR D EITRMDEZ30%  RER
NREAPEASEAERSEEREAIERBRENIERTORNZSHE - KARRTKER
TEM1% AR - BITREBEZ EROBERASBRRERRAS L1E -

AARRBESE TBITRAS TERRIWSFZEMBBARDBRE - ALLBUIFNITES
JE o tesh - IMEA12E A A ARA R R T ERRSBIIFATEFTARENEFABREARDBK
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—ECEF —F—NF
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FRET BB TT
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—EEF
BREHA
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35,630,000

—T-hF
AR
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HE T ZF+-_A=1+—HIFE  AEERBAFERD MR ZERERIAERERS A
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RBEFERANFEAEEEENCERAAEHE - FRIBREBIORS0ENGAERSEE -

30. BEREARFEFRBRZHFZENBELR
WA BEARFEN R 2 AR RIMBARFIEHRIIT

ISR A ZBRET DL

EIIREWEBRAR([ETLER]) 40.72% 40.72%
Mindforce } E BB A &) ([ Mindforce £ | ) 29% 29%

DT IEEHIER 2 AFEHERN, (BE):
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R¥RE B IR S 2 RAt 4R -
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TEIFLMMBATZHEERES « RSB B HMIMATREHENSE -

Mindforce 5B

FHT

—E-EF

WA 3,048,661 2,283,274

BH S (2,951,195) (2,359,941)
NEHEF,(E8E) 97,466 (76,667)
KEEZEEA (B )4EEE 424,673 (38,802)
MENEE 3,513,987 1,278,236

EMBEE 2,426,655 808,717

REEE (2,216,252) (926,244)
EmBEE (25,365) (641,871)
KRS,/ (FTA)REREFE (108,846) 121,030

KE AR E REF5E (425,040) (16,394)
MEEEBE(FTR)REREFE 258,829 (102,165)
REMREFEYIEMN, Ol ) F5E (275,057) 2,471

Mindforces B

FHET
—E-NF
WA 2,946,066 2,136,707
“AR ST (2,763,909) (2,181,104)
AEFERF,(E8) 182,157 (44,397)
AEEZEMBA(FIX)4ERE 89,997 (51,255)
RENEE 3,133,158 1,536,049
IERBEE 2,136,543 826,112
REEaE (1,815,361) (1,189,971)
EREEE (179,988) (614,550)
RS, (A RERE S 342,257 (96,807)
KEESFARe REFE (185,692) (35,275)
BMEEEBRE(FFR)REREFE (220,4809) 136,646
RERIBESEDEM, R )FEE (63,924) 4,564
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(a) EFEFREXH

FR - AEERBRLAMEEELHNERAEEENEERGENIFRSIEMND HIR707,0008T(—F—

NEF : 5,083,000/87T) K707,000/8 7C( == — L4 : 5,083,000/ 7T) °

(b) BMEEDELZEEEH

—EEF
HEEE STERITEE
THT TH T
RZE-ZTF—H—H 4,724 3,774,847
MERSREEDH (2,106) 736,629
e 707 =
FAERHRIZFH S 163 =
DHEAKEESRNENFE (163) =
4N B 10 (18,829)
RZEBE-FF+-_H=+—H 3,335 4,492,647
—E-NF

HEAE

THET

STRIRITEE
?/;FETE

RZZE—NF—A—H 287 4,144,267
BMERERELD (720) (339,592)
HE 5,083 -
FRERHNRIGH S 71 -
SNGE B & 3 (29,828)
RZE-NF+=-A=+—H 4,724 3,774,847

113 ERBERZERERAT &3k 2020



Bt 75 #R R BT =

—E2-TF+=-A=+—H

31. ZREBRERERMT 2
(0 HEMHBESHE
HABSHEENRERSALEBENT

& EE 2,372 2,970
EEEE S 2,106 720
4,478 3,690
32. HAEE

RBESR  AEBLEEAERRAEE -

33. EiE
(a) AEERBEHRZERAZNT

EEEIEES 2R
g5 349,964 49,870
HEE NN ERME 228,173 243,114
48 E AR 578,137 292,984

(b) R-ZE-NE+-_A=1—B AEEHAEERKFENEESH -

RIZZE-AF+-A=+—H  ZETARHENEESHBRRESN —FAEIHR1,198,8088 T
MRE_FEFRF(RIEEREMF) I R426,42008 7T -
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A THALZSEE HERK :
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)
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#7/334,000/87C - FA - (EAEEENEL33,0008 T REEEBENFE L2000 TERGERIBRETH

BOXRAEAREERARIMNESHRRE - e NREFES I HENRERETE - BRtEHHEERRTEEREA
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BEEEHA156,00087T © FAN - EREEETEL127,000E T LRAEE BN B H46,0008 T REEE
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34, BEALTRZ#)
(b) AEBXEEBAENMS(TREZEHNS):

MHEEEF 9,433 10,216
& B i% (0 MENF X 3,237 5,141
MEBEEABNENE 25 12,670 15,357

EFEMEHE—FHBHNMBEREMEEI °

35. BERIESWEMITA
RBEDR - SLWTAERINEEENT -

—g-%f

_———

EHEE

LI ERA EERRAFES
HER ARMEEYRAN

tRMEE RAERE

FH T FH T
BE AR AFEF AR MEEmRANBRARRE = 24,218 24,218
EUNE 5308 3,975,767 = 3,975,767

BEfABMZKE -« e MEMERZEN SR

BE 288,735 = 288,735
BRI NIRRT 4S8R 38,311 = 38,311
ReMReEED 928,674 = 928,674
5,231,487 24,218 5,255,705
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35. RERIBISWEMIA®)
REEHF - S2BMTARRINEAENT : (4)

—EEF(E)
THERE
1R 8 R A
FIRRHY
cA =R
FExT
ENEZHIEREE 1,399,513
Bt AEMEMRLEASEANESREE 685,714
FFEIRITEE 4,492,647
HEak 3,335
6,581,209
—E2-NF
THREE

BEREAFER
ABESHRCANGHER AR EEIAR

TREE BRAKE
T THTT

BERAEAFEFAHMEEARANREIEE - 26,841 26,841
JE W B 5 5K IE 3,146,961 - 3,146,961

ERFATENRIE « B REAEKFIENS R
BE 151,334 - 151,334
EHEARZRERITAA R 33,824 - 33,824
RENRSFEY 1,142,072 - 1,142,072
4,474,191 26,841 4,501,032
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35. RERIBISWEMIA®)
REEHF - SSRTARRNEAENT : (4)

—E-NEF#E)
EHEE

ERESFENEER 1,064,696
BEifAEMENREETEANEREE 452,462
HERITEE 3,774,847
HERE 4,724

5,296,729

36. SRMTAAFERAFEER
AEESBTA(TREXSEAERATESAREES) 2 ERERATENT -

SRMEE
BEREATEFAEMZEKAK
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AEBUBEAPIRAVBRERE -  AFEEFTSRITARNTEFENBREER - MBHPFIERRITEEER
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36. SRMITAAFERAFEESR®
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TRINAEESBTAZ ATFEFBER

UAFEFAEZEE
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RA NSz AFEFTE
ERTERE EATEEHA EXTUBES

(-8R BHBEZR) ABEBE=R)
FERT FERT FRET

BT AEAFEFAEMEEB AR
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RA T2 AFERE
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IEBEARAFEF AR M2 AR
A E
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AEENEBZECRTABEERITEE  CEARIRFIRTERALBRS MEREFR - ZFeRTAE
EER/AEERZXBERES - AEERAEMSREREENAENERKE SR - EMEKFIE - &
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$EIE@ET&@mm%H e TEREWIFUAREEFMLENBRARNINEERTENE TRKRESK
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48R ©
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121E B FE 1A ZHIFEHA
FEEFE FEFE
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1,255,720 3,980,850 5,236,570

123 ERBEREZERERAT &3k 2020



Bt 75 #R R BT =

—E2-TF+=-A=+—H

TRlE R ERE R ERBER )
&R

RARBEAER FRERDE(E)
R-F-NF+-RA=+—H
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AEEMERENEBERRTERLEAERE  REESFEMEBTUNFE - I - XAEETEHEE
RITERERBEEIERSRE

AT &R EER REHROERBET B RIBC ATHOMERRR TR E) -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

EY:

To the shareholders of Ju Teng International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Ju Teng International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 45 to 129, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter
is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

To the shareholders of Ju Teng International Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)
Key audit matter
Assessment of inventory provision

As at 31 December 2020, the net carrying value of the
Group's inventories amounted to HK$2,292,404,000.
The assessment of inventory provision is based on the
estimated net realisable value of inventories, which
requires significant management judgements and
estimates. Management considers various factors,
including the conditions and ageing of inventories,
sales pattern and selling prices of inventories, market
demand and the Group’s future plan of usage and
sale of inventories. Management'’s provision assessment
involves a high level of judgements and estimates, and
is subject to uncertainty due to rapid changes of the
notebook and tablet computer market.

Related disclosures about inventories are included in
notes 4 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our audit procedures included, among others, evaluating
management’s assessment methodology based on the
Group's circumstances, and evaluating the inputs and
assumptions applied by management in performing the
provision assessment by reviewing the ageing, the historical
usage and sales patterns, the post year-end usage, sales
and selling prices, of selected samples of inventories.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

To the shareholders of Ju Teng International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or
to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

42 Ju Teng International Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2020



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

To the shareholders of Ju Teng International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

To the shareholders of Ju Teng International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
(continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Kwong Ka Yan.

.43

Certified Public Accountants
22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central

Hong Kong

17 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019

HK$°000 HK$'000

REVENUE 6 10,029,519 8,916,007
Cost of sales (8,594,772) (7,771,052)
Gross profit 1,434,747 1,144,955
Other income and gains 6 116,245 142,284
Selling and distribution expenses (155,537) (134,328)
Administrative expenses (697,522) (669,430)
Other expenses (320,079) (17,787)
Finance costs 7 (92,332) (137,172)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8 285,522 328,522
Income tax expense 11 (128,503) (116,608)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 157,019 211,914

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company 130,506 145,913
Non-controlling interests 26,513 66,001
157,019 211,914

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 13
— Basic (HK cents) 15.1 15.9
— Diluted (HK cents) 14.8 15.8
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 157,019 211,914

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSES)

Other comprehensive income/(expenses) that may be
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 823,270 (227,027)

Other comprehensive income/(expenses) that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Equity investment designated at fair value through other

comprehensive income:

Change in fair value 21 (2,515) 16,170
Income tax effect 17 509 (1,755)
(2,006) 14,415

Release of exchange fluctuation reserve upon disposal of
a subsidiary - (962)

Net other comprehensive income/(expenses) that will not
be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods (2,006) 13,453

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSES)
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 821,264 (213,574)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSES)
FOR THE YEAR 978,283 (1,660)

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company 803,599 (27,112)
Non-controlling interests 174,684 25,452
978,283 (1,660)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

2020

HK$'000

31 December 2020

2019
HK$'000

Property, plant and equipment 14 7,858,301 7,174,534
Right-of-use assets 15(a) 664,566 546,196
Goodwill 16 52,488 52,488
Deferred tax assets 17 68,091 61,654
Prepayments for acquisition of property, plant

and equipment 183,072 66,764
Equity investment designated at fair value through

other comprehensive income 21 24,218 26,841
Total non-current assets 8,850,736 7,928,477
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 18 2,292,404 1,657,535
Trade receivables 19 3,975,767 3,146,961
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 20 370,295 205,047
Pledged and restricted bank balances 22 38,311 33,824
Cash and cash equivalents 22 928,674 1,142,072
Total current assets 7,605,451 6,185,439
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and bills payables 23 1,399,513 1,064,696
Other payables and accruals 24 2,106,296 1,566,366
Lease liabilities 15(b) 2,155 1,764
Tax payable 128,023 156,929
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 25 3,061,696 2,869,848
Total current liabilities 6,697,683 5,659,603
NET CURRENT ASSETS 907,768 525,836
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 9,758,504 8,454,313
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

31 December 2020

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Interest-bearing bank borrowings 25 1,430,951 904,999
Deferred income 26 46,894 35,646
Lease liabilities 15(b) 1,180 2,960
Deferred tax liabilities 17 61,696 62,205
Total non-current liabilities 1,540,721 1,005,810
Net assets 8,217,783 7,448,503
EQUITY
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company
Issued capital 27 120,001 116,634
Reserves 29 6,351,193 5,759,964
6,471,194 5,876,598
Non-controlling interests 1,746,589 1,571,905
Total equity 8,217,783 7,448,503
LY
T / L
Cheng Li-Yu Huang Kuo-Kuang
Director Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 December 2020

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Shares  Employee
Share held under  share-based  Statutory  Exchange Non-

Issued  premium share award compensation  reserve fluctuation Retained Fairvalue  Other controlling  Total
capital  account plan reserve fund  reserve  profits  reserve  reserves Total interests  equity

Note  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000 HKS'000
(Note27)  Note()  Note(c) Note (c) Notes(a)(c  Note()  Note(c)  Note(c) Notes (b),(c)

At 1 January 2019 116634 827 (55%,23) 81763 26125 (78278 6090% - (%0 31393 6077347 1546453 7,623,800

Profit for the year - - - - - - 145913 -
Other comprehensive income/(expenses)
for the year:
Change in fair value of an equity
investment designated at
fair value through other
comprehensive income, net of tax - - - - - - - 14415 - 144 - 14415
Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations - - - - - (186478 - -
Release of exchange fluctuation
reserve upon disposal of a
subsidiary - - - - - (%2) - - - (%2) - (%)

145913 66,001 211,914

(186,478)  (40,549) (27,027)

Total comprehensive income[expenses)

for the year - - - - - (187400 145913 14415 -y B4 (1,660)
Purchase of shares under the share

award plan - - (100729 - - - - - - (100729) - (100,729
Disposal of a subsidiary - - - - (1,521) - - - - - (15)
Dividend received under the share

award plan - - 24246 - - - - - - U6 - L8
Share-hased compensation arrangements 28 - - - 21,001 - - - - -0 - 1001
Transfer from retained profits - - - - 41,598 - (#5%) - - - - -
2018 final dividend - - - - - - (116,634) - - (116,634 - (116,634)
At 31 December 2019 116634 85267 (632,706) 102764 256200 (465718) 6079737 10455 323963 5876598 1571905 7448503
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2020

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Shares  Employee
Share held under share-based  Statutory  Exchange Non-

Issued  premium share award compensation reserve fluctuation  Retained Fair value Other controlling  Total
capital  account plan reserve fund  reserve  profits  reserve  reserves Total interests  equity

Notes HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS'000
(Note27)  Note()  Note(d) Note(c) Notes(a)(c) Note()  Note()  Note(c) Notes (b)(c)

At 1 January 2020 116634 85267  (632,706) 102764 256200 (465,718) 6079737 10455 323963 5876598 1,571,905 7,448,503
Profit for the year - - - - - - 130506 - - 130506 26513 157,09
Other comprehensive income[expenses)
for the year
Change in fair value of an equity
investment designated at
fair value through other
comprehensive income, net of tax - - - - - - - (2,000) - (2,006) - (2.000)
Bichange differences on translation of
foreign operations - - - - - 675,09 - - - 675009 148171 823210
Total comprehensive incomef(expenses)
for the year - - - - - 67509 130506 (2,006) - 803599 174,684 978,283
Issue of shares in connection with the
erercise of share options )] 3367 102,652 - (56,193) - - - - - 49826 - 19,826
Purchase of shares under the share
award plan - - (178330) - - - - - - (178330) - (178,330)
Dividend received under the share
award plan - - 0,710 - - - - - -/ - 190
Share-based compensation
armangements 8 - - - 6,365 - - - - - 6,365 - 6365
Transfer from retained profits - - - - 203569 - (203569) - - - - -
2019 final dividend - - - - - - (116,634) - - (116,634) - (116,634)
At 31 December 2020 120001 187,919 (781,266) 52,03 459,771 209,381 5,890,040 8449 303963 6471194 1,746,589 8,217,783
Notes:
(@) In accordance with the relevant regulations in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC” or “Mainland China”), the Company’s

subsidiaries established in the PRC are required to transfer a certain percentage of their profit after tax to the statutory reserve
fund. Subject to certain restrictions set out in the relevant PRC regulations and in the subsidiaries’ articles of association, the
statutory reserve fund may be used either to offset losses, or for capitalisation issue by way of paid-up capital.

(b) The other reserves comprise capital reserve which represents profits of the Company’s subsidiaries capitalised during the prior
years and other capital reserve.

(c) These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$6,351,193,000 (2019: HK$5,759,964,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 December 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2020

HK$’000

2019
HK$'000

Profit before tax 285,522 328,522
Adjustments for:
Finance costs 7 92,332 137,172
Interest income 6 (9,440) (13,506)
Write-off of long outstanding trade payables,
other payables and accruals 6 (2,546) (785)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 8 931,341 1,008,032
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 8 16,114 13,575
Loss on disposal of items of property, plant and
equipment, net 8 6,095 12,576
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary 8 - 2,048
Impairment of trade receivables 8 3,174 509
Write-back of trade receivables 8 (425) (803)
Provision/(reversal of provision) for inventories, net 8 156,445 (930)
Recognition of deferred income (14,045) (73,732)
Equity-settled share option expenses 28(a) 6,365 21,001
1,470,932 1,433,679
Increase in inventories (647,924) (98,007)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables (614,400) 63,819
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables (146,351) 83,863
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills payables 267,209 (16,543)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and accruals 508,542 (32,948)
Cash generated from operations 838,008 1,433,863
PRC income tax paid (159,765) (147,550)
Overseas income tax paid (2,857) (3,743)
Withholding tax paid - (535)
Interest received 9,440 13,506
Interest paid (100,859) (146,713)
Net cash flows from operating activities 583,967 1,148,828
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

Net cash flows from operating activities 583,967 1,148,828

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment (1,070,178) (688,860)
Additions of right-of-use assets (92,995) -
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, plant

and equipment 3,119 71,519
Disposal of a subsidiary 1 - 32,586
Decrease/(increase) in pledged and restricted bank balances (4,487) 32,576
Increase in prepayments for acquisition of property, plant

and equipment (183,072) (66,764)
Net cash flows used in investing activities (1,347,613) (618,943)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

New bank loans 2,566,869 1,692,030
Repayment of bank loans (1,830,240) (2,031,622)
Dividend paid (116,634) (116,634)
Proceeds from issue of shares in connection with

the exercise of share options 27 49,826 -
Purchase of shares held under the share award plan (178,330) (100,729)
Dividend received under the share award plan 29,770 24,246
Principal portion of lease payments (2,106) (720)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities 519,155 (533,429)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (244,491) (3,544)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,142,072 1,157,244
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net 31,093 (11,628)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 928,674 1,142,072

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances 22 928,674 1,142,072

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position and the
consolidated statement of cash flows 928,674 1,142,072
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2020

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Ju Teng International Holdings Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands.
During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) were principally
engaged in the manufacture and sale of casings for notebook computer and handheld devices. The registered
office address of the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Issued and Equity interest

Place of incorporation/ paid-up share/ attributable to
Company name registration and business registered capital the Company  Principal activities

Best Alliance Holding Inc. A British Virgin lslands ("BVI")/ 15$52,600,000 100%  Investment holding
The Republic of China Ordinary
(The "ROC")
Giant Glory International Limited Samoa/lROC US$49,777,419 100%  Investment holding
Ordinary
Everyday Computer Components PRC U5$52,500,000 100%  Manufacture and
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd. * sale of casings
Suzhou Dazhi Communication PRC US$148,500,000 100%  Manufacture and
Accessory Co., Ltd. * (2019: US$108,500,000) sale of casings
Ju Teng (Neijiang) Communication Accessory PRC 15$99,000,000 100%  Manufacture and
Co., Ltd. * sale of casings
Tri-Great International Limited Samoa/ROC US$1,000,000 100%  Sale of casings and
Ordinary related materials
Gili Co,, Ltd. ROC NT$105,000,000 100%  Sale of casings and
Ordinary related materials
Grand Develop Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100%  Provision of general
Ordinary administrative and
support services
Mindforce Holdings Limited ("Mindforce”) BVIROC US§75,101,000 71%  Investment holding
Ordinary
WIS Precision (Kunshan) Co., Ltd. * PRC 1S§25,000,000 71%  Manufacture and

sale of casings
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2020

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Company name

Place of incorporation/
registration and business

Issued and
paid-up share/

registered capital

Equity interest
attributable to
the Company

Principal activities

WIS Precision (Taizhou) Co., Ltd. * PRC 15$69,800,000 71%  Manufacture and
sale of casings
Dynamic Apex Macao Commercial Macau MOP100,000 100%  Sale of casings and
Offshore Limited related materials
Chengyang Precision Mould (Kunshan) Co., Ltd. ~ PRC S$33,000,000 - Manufacture and
("Chengyang") * (note (a)) sale of moulds
Fullerton Ltd. Samoa/ROC US$31,749,800 71%  Investment holding and
Ordinary sale of computer equipment
and peripherals
Lian-Yi Precision (Zhongshan) Inc. * PRC 15$33,400,000 71%  Manufacture and sale of
computer equipment and
peripherals
Wah Yuen Technology Holding Limited Mauritius/ROC US$261,758,240 59.28%  Investment holding
("Wah Yuen") Ordinary
Hong Ya Technology Corp. ROC NT$475,577,800 59.28%  Manufacture and
Ordinary sale of casings
Compal Precision Module China Holdings Ltd. Mauritius/ROC U5§236,267,926 59.28%  Investment holding and
Ordinary sale of casings and
related materials
Compal Precision Module (Jiangsu) PRC US§410,000,000 59.28%  Manufacture and
Company Limited * sale of casings
Compal Electronic Technology PRC US$60,000,000 59.28%  Manufacture and
(Chongging) Co., Ltd * sale of casings
Jiang Su Inoac Juteng Polymer Co., Ltd. * PRC 1S§6,000,000 81.46%  Manufacture and
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2020

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Issued and Equity interest

Place of incorporation/ paid-up share/ attributable to
Company name registration and business registered capital the Company  Principal activities

Wujiang Dading Precision Mould Co., Ltd. * PRC 1S§80,000,000 100%  Manufacture and
sale of casings

Tasun (Chongging) Electronic PRC 15$90,000,000 100%  Manufacture and
Technology Co., Ltd. * sale of casings
Dongxu Juteng Electronic Material PRC US$1,000,000 51%  Manufacture and
(Jurong) Co. Ltd. * sale of materials
He Li Cheng Electronic PRC U5$700,000 51%  Manufacture and
Material (Chong Qing) Co. Ltd. * sale of materials
Juteng Electronic Technology PRC US$165,000,000 100%  Manufacture and
(Taizhou) Co., Ltd. * (2019: US$145,000,000) sale of casings
* Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the PRC law
A Directly held by the Company

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2020

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)
Note:
(a) Disposal of a subsidiary

On 18 April 2019, the Group disposed of its entire equity interest in Chengyang to an independent
third party for a cash consideration of RMB39,557,000 (equivalent to HK$46,027,000).

2019
Notes HK$'000

Net assets disposed of:
Property, plant and equipment 14 34,570
Right-of-use assets 15(a) 1,420
Goodwill 16 1,497
Cash and cash equivalents 13,441
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 146
Other payables and accruals (516)
50,558
Release of exchange fluctuation and other reserves (2,483)
48,075
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary 8 (2,048)
46,027

Satisfied by:

Cash 46,027

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary

is as follows:
2019
HK$'000
Cash consideration 46,027
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (13,441)

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the disposal of a
subsidiary 32,586
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2020

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for an equity
investment which has been measured at fair value. These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars ("HK$") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 December 2020. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;
(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(0) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the parent
of the Group and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having
a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control described above. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities
of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value
of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained
profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2020

3.1 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

58

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the “Conceptual Framework ")
and the following revised HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions (early adopted)
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material

The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework and Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 are
described below:

(a) The Conceptual Framework sets out a comprehensive set of concepts for financial reporting and
standard setting, and provides guidance for preparers of financial statements in developing consistent
accounting policies and assistance to all parties to understand and interpret the standards. The
Conceptual Framework includes new chapters on measurement and reporting financial performance,
new guidance on the derecognition of assets and liabilities, and updated definitions and recognition
criteria for assets and liabilities. It also clarifies the roles of stewardship, prudence and measurement
uncertainty in financial reporting. The Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and none of the concepts
contained therein override the concepts or requirements in any standard. The Conceptual Framework
did not have any significant impact on the financial position and performance of the Group.

(b) Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition of material. The new definition states
that information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis
of those financial statements. The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or
magnitude of information, or both. The amendments did not have any significant impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.

The adoption of the above revised HKFRSs has had no significant financial effect on these financial statements.
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3.2

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2020

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework?
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2'
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
and HKAS 28 (2011) Associate or Joint Venture®

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®

Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts® ©

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current® ®

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use?

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
2018-2020 accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 412

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October 2020
to align the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

6 As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary
exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January
2023

oos woN =

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKAS 1 clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The
amendments specify that if an entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying
with specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting
period if it complies with those conditions at that date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the
likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability. The amendments also clarify
the situations that are considered a settlement of a liability. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of the other aforementioned new and

revised HKFRSs upon their initial application but is not yet in a position to state whether these new and revised
HKFRSs would have any significant impact on its financial performance and financial position.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value
or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired set of activities and assets includes
an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts
of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred,
the amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity
interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition
date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities
of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.
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31 December 2020

3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part
of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investment at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use
of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1T — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The estimated useful lives of the items of property,
plant and equipment are as follows:

Freehold land Not depreciated

Buildings 20 years

Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms or 5 to 10 years
Machinery 5 to 10 years

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 5 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that item
is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised
is the difference between the net sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and machinery and other items of property, plant and
equipment under construction or installation, which are stated at cost less any impairment losses, and are not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of purchase, construction, installation and testing and capitalised
borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the period of construction or installation. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for use.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use
assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Annual Report 2020  Ju Teng International Holdings Limited 63



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2020

3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

64

Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

(b)

(o)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of the lease (that is the date the underlying
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-
of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Lease premium for land 50 years
Office properties 1 to 3 years
Motor vehicles 3 years

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities
is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a
change to future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change in assessment
of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of office
properties and equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the recognition exemption
for leases of low-value assets to leases of office equipment that are considered to be of low value.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when there is a lease modification) each
of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted average
basis and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided
that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits

Pension schemes

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland China are required to participate in
central pension schemes operated by the relevant government authorities. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension schemes. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension schemes.

The Group also operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the
“MPF Scheme"”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for its employees employed by the
Group's subsidiary in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The Group also operates a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme under the Labor Pension Act (the
“Act”) for its employees employed by the Group’s subsidiary in the ROC. Based on the Act, the Group's
monthly contribution to individual pension accounts of employees covered by the defined contribution plan
is at 6% of monthly salaries and wages. The funds are deposited in individual labour pension accounts at
the Bureau of Labor Insurance.

Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes and a share award plan for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the operations of the Group. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer, further details of which are given in note 28 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit or loss
for a period represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of
that period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date
fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group's best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are
reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated
service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or
performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service conditions have not
been met, no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions
are treated as vesting irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that
all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the
terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is recognised
for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial
to the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and
any expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any award where non-
vesting conditions within the control of either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original award,
as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of
earnings per share.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The
gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item
whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the
date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance,
the Group determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As
at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit or
loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.
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Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and that person

(i) has control, or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iiiy  is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or of a parent of the Group;
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iiiy  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Group
or an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);

(vii)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its
fair value plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
("SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order
to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are
held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows, while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.
Financial assets which are not held within the aforementioned business models are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income when they meet the definition of equity under
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on
an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established,
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount
of the dividend can be measured reliably, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery
of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income are not subject to
impairment assessment.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets)
is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset
nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent
of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the

lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at
fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 120 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before
taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income and financial assets at amortised cost
are subject to impairment under the general approach and they are classified within the following stages for
measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition
and for which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 —  Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date (but that are not purchased or

originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the Group applies the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,
as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills payables, financial liabilities included in other payables
and accruals, lease liabilities and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held by the Company or the Group (treasury shares) are
recognised directly in equity at cost. No gain or loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss on the
purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and at banks, including term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item,
it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred income account and is released to
the statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

Transfer of assets

Where the Group receives non-monetary assets transferred from its customers or equivalent and the Group
has to provide ongoing access to a supply of goods or services, the related assets are recorded at the fair
value of the non-monetary assets and released to the statement of profit or loss as revenue over the expected
useful lives of the relevant assets by equal annual instalments, while a deferred income account is credited
and is released to the statement of profit or loss as revenue over the expected useful life of the relevant asset.
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Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to
the customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

Other income

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease terms.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or
a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from
a customer before the Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services
to the customer).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in
use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
Further details are given in note 16.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables. The provision rates are based on
days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast market conditions (such as global shipments of personal computers) are expected to deteriorate over
the next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults, the historical default rates are adjusted. At
each reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default rates, forecast market conditions and ECLs
is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast economic
conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of a customer’s actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the Group’s
trade receivables is disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Write-down of inventories

Management reviews the condition of inventories of the Group and makes provision against obsolete and slow-
moving inventory items which are identified as no longer suitable for sale or use. Management estimates the
net realisable value for inventories based primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market conditions.
The Group carries out an inventory review at the end of each reporting period and makes provision against
obsolete and slow-moving items. Management considers various factors, including the conditions and ageing
of inventories, sales pattern and selling prices of inventories, market demand and the Group’s future plan of
usage and sale of inventories. Management reassesses the estimation at the end of each reporting period.

The identification of obsolete and slow-moving inventory items requires the use of judgements and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact on the carrying
values of inventories and the write-down of inventories recognised in the periods in which such estimates
have been changed. The carrying amount of inventories carried as assets in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2020 was HK$2,292,404,000 (2019: HK$1,657,535,000), details of
which are set out in note 18 to the financial statements.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements,
apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the financial statements.

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment property, and has developed criteria in
making that judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or
both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a property generates cash flows largely independently of the
other assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation and another portion that is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold separately or leased out separately under a finance
lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions could not be sold separately, the property
is an investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does not qualify as an investment property.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Judgements (continued)

Withholding taxes

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises in Mainland China. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. The Group is therefore liable for
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

In estimating the withholding taxes on dividends to be distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland
China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008, the directors have made assessment based on
factors which include the dividend policy and the level of capital and working capital required for the Group’s
operations in the foreseeable future.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the business of manufacture and sale of casings for notebook computer
and handheld devices. For management purposes, the Group operates in one business unit based on its casing
products, and has one reportable operating segment.

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating segment.

Geographical information

(i) Revenue from external customers:

2020 PAONES)

HK$'000 HK$'000

The PRC, excluding Hong Kong 9,884,929 8,760,503
The ROC 89,218 115,369
Others 55,372 40,135
10,029,519 8,916,007

The revenue information above is based on the locations where the products are delivered to the
customers.
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information (continued)

(i)  Non-current assets:

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$’000

The PRC, excluding Hong Kong 8,587,760 7,695,302
The ROC 167,752 140,082
Others 2,915 4,598
8,758,427 7,839,982

The non-current asset information above, excluding an equity investment designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income and deferred tax assets, is based on the locations of the assets.

Information about major customers

Revenues of approximately HK$3,004,469,000, HK$1,919,813,000, HK$1,503,889,000 and HK$1,316,667,000
for the year ended 31 December 2020 were derived from sales to four major groups of customers, the revenue
from each of which accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue.

Revenues of approximately HK$2,251,948,000, HK$1,506,148,000, HK$1,225,507,000, HK$1,185,813,000
and HK$975,973,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019 were derived from sales to five major groups of
customers, the revenue from each of which accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue.

6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

Revenue from contracts with customers
Sale of casings for notebook computer and handheld devices 10,029,519 8,916,007
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6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(i)

Disaggregated revenue information

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
Geographical markets

The PRC, excluding Hong Kong 9,884,929 8,760,503
The ROC 89,218 115,369
Others 55,372 40,135
10,029,519 8,916,007

Timing of revenue recognition
Goods transferred at a point in time 10,029,519 8,916,007

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in the current reporting period that
were included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

Revenue recognised that was included in contract liabilities
at the beginning of the reporting period:
Sale of casings for notebook computer and handheld
devices 41,151 35,097
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6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(ii) Performance obligation

Sale of casings for notebook computer and handheld devices

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the goods and payment is generally due within

60 to 120 days from delivery.

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
Other income and gains

Interest income 9,440 13,506
Subsidy income* 71,102 48,217
Compensation income 7,627 8,761
Gross rental income 24,643 25,625
Write-back of trade receivables 425 803

Write-off of long outstanding trade payables,
other payables and accruals 2,546 785
Foreign exchange gains, net - 41,204
Others 462 3,383
116,245 142,284

# Various government subsidies have been received for enterprises engaged in businesses in Mainland China for

promoting the manufacturing industry. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these

subsidies.

7. FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of the Group’s finance costs is as follows:

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

Interest on bank loans 100,696 146,713
Interest on lease liabilities 163 71

Total interest expense on financial liabilities not at fair value

through profit or loss 100,859 146,784
Less: Interest capitalised (8,527) (9,612)
92,332 137,172
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8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

2020 2019
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Cost of inventories sold* 8,594,772 7,771,052
Auditor’s remuneration 4,060 4,050
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 14 931,341 1,008,032
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 15(a) 16,114 13,575
Lease payments not included in the measurement of
lease liabilities 15(c) 2,209 2,899
Provision/(reversal of provision) for inventories, net** 156,445 (930)
Impairment of trade receivables*** 19 3,174 509
Write-back of trade receivables**** (425) (803)
Employee benefit expense
(excluding directors'remuneration — note 9):
Wages and salaries, bonuses, allowances and
welfare 2,730,216 2,525,353
Equity-settled share option expenses 5,123 18,990
Pension scheme contributions 127,761 152,091
2,863,100 2,696,434

Gross rental income on owner-occupied properties
and machinery (24,643) (25,625)
Less: Direct operating expenses arising from
rental-earning owner-occupied properties
and machinery 4,986 4,574

Net rental income (19,657) (21,051)

Loss on disposal of items of property, plant and

equipment, net*** 6,095 12,576
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary*** 1 - 2,048
Foreign exchange losses/(gains), net***** 306,541 (41,204)
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)

* Cost of inventories sold includes HK$3,734,715,000 (2019: HK$3,412,212,000) relating to depreciation,
employee benefit expense, and provision/(reversal of provision) for inventories, net, which are also
included in the total amounts disclosed above for each of these types of expenses.

*x Included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
* ok Included in “Other expenses” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
***% Included in “Other income and gains” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

**x%% Foreign exchange losses, net are included in “Other expenses” on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Foreign exchange gains, net are included in “Other income and gains”
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong
Stock Exchange”), section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of
the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2020 2019

HK$°000 HK$'000

Fees 594 594
Other emoluments:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 9,056 8,165

Performance related bonuses 1,529 1,667

Share-based payments 1,242 2,011

Pension scheme contributions 34 34

11,861 11,877

12,455 12,471

Certain directors were granted share options, in respect of their services to the Group, under the share option
scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out in note 28 to the financial statements. The fair
values of such options, which have been recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period,
were determined as at the date of grant and the amounts included in the financial statements for the current
and prior years are included in the above directors’ and chief executive's remuneration disclosures.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S REMUNERATION (continued)
(@) Independent non-executive directors

The fees and share-based payment expenses paid to independent non-executive directors during the
year were as follows:

2020
Share-based Total
Name of director Fees payments remuneration
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
Mr. Cherng Chia-Jiun 198 79 277
Mr. Tsai Wen-Yu 198 79 277
Mr. Yip Wai Ming 198 79 277
594 237 831

2019
Share-based Total
Name of director Fees payments remuneration
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Mr. Cherng Chia-Jiun 198 126 324
Mr. Tsai Wen-Yu 198 126 324
Mr. Yip Wai Ming 198 126 324
594 378 972

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non-executive directors during the year
(2019: Nil).
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Executive directors and the chief executive

Salaries,
allowances Performance Pension

and benefits related  Share-based scheme Total
Name of director Fees in kind bonuses payments contributions remuneration
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

2020
Mr. Cheng Li-Yu - 812 68 - - 880
Mr. Huang Kuo-Kuang - 912 65 266 16 1,259
Mr. Chiu Hui-Chin* - 3,724 931 105 - 4,760
Mr. Lin Feng-Chieh - 1,862 465 369 = 2,696
Mr. Tsui Yung Kwok - 1,746 - 265 18 2,029
- 9,056 1,529 1,005 34 11,624
2019
Mr. Cheng Li-Yu - - - - - -
Mr. Huang Kuo-Kuang - 897 257 428 16 1,598
Mr. Chiu Hui-Chin* - 3,762 940 193 - 4,895
Mr. Lin Feng-Chieh - 1,881 470 584 - 2,935
Mr. Tsui Yung Kwok - 1,625 - 428 18 2,071
- 8,165 1,667 1,633 34 11,499
* Mr. Chiu Hui-Chin is the chief executive officer of the Company.

During the year, Mr. Cheng Li-Yu, a director and the chairman of the Group, agreed to waive the
remuneration of HK$135,000 (2019: HK$932,000).
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year included three (2019: two) directors, details of
whose remuneration are set out in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining
two (2019: three) highest paid employees who are neither directors nor chief executive of the Company are
as follows:

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 1,366 1,972
Performance related bonuses 2,153 3,314
Equity-settled share option expenses 1,039 2,756
Pension scheme contributions 33 45
4,591 8,087

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within
the following bands is as follows:

Number of employees

2020 2019

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2 -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 = 3
2 3

Share options were granted under the share option scheme of the Company to the non-director and non-
chief executive, highest paid employees in respect of their services to the Group, further details of which are
included in the disclosures in note 28 to the financial statements. The fair value of such options, which has
been recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the date of
grant and the amounts included in the financial statements for the current and prior years are included in the
above non-director and non-chief executive highest paid employees’ remuneration disclosures.

Annual Report 2020  Ju Teng International Holdings Limited 87



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2020

11.

88

INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided as the Group did not have any assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year (2019: Nil). Taxes on assessable profits have been calculated at the rates of tax
prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations and

practices in respect thereof.

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
Provision for the year:
Current — The PRC, excluding Hong Kong
Charge for the year 153,032 116,414
Underprovision in prior years 11,211 9,385
Current — Overseas
Charge for the year 9,472 11,844
Overprovision in prior years (43,004) (28,839)
Deferred tax (note 17) (2,208) 7,804
Total tax charge for the year 128,503 116,608
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11. INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable to profit/(loss) before tax at the statutory rates, ranging
from 16.5% to 25% (2019: 16.5% to 25%), for the jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of
its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense/(credit) at the effective tax rates is as follows:

2020

The PRC,
excluding

Hong Kong Hong Kong Overseas Total
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000

Profit/(loss) before tax (33,543) 358,436 (39,371) 285,522

Tax at the statutory tax

rate (5,535) 89,609 (7,874) 76,200
Preferential tax rates - (17,655) - (17,655)
Adjustments in respect of

current tax of previous

periods - 11,211 (43,004) (31,793)
Income not subject to tax (399) (12,175) (1,036) (13,610)
Expenses not deductible

for tax 5,934 43,765 3,965 53,664
Tax losses not recognised - 47,153 - 47,153
Temporary differences not

recognised - - 14,417 14,417
Others - 127 - 127

Tax charge/(credit) at the
Group's effective rate - 162,035 (33,532) 128,503
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2020
11. INCOME TAX (continued)

2019

The PRC,
excluding

Hong Kong Hong Kong Overseas Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

Profit/(loss) before tax (60,445) 462,600 (73,633) 328,522

Tax at the statutory tax
rate (9,973) 115,650 (14,726) 90,951

Preferential tax rates - (4,622) 38 (4,584)
Adjustments in respect of
current tax of previous

periods - 9,385 (28,839) (19,454)
Income not subject to tax (504) (10,043) (181) (10,728)
Expenses not deductible

for tax 10,477 7,486 1,659 19,622
Tax losses not recognised - 15,115 - 15,115
Temporary differences not

recognised - - 25,054 25,054
Others - 632 - 632

Tax charge/(credit) at the
Group's effective rate - 133,603 (16,995) 116,608
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11.

12.

13.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2020

INCOME TAX (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law being effective on 1 January 2008, the income tax is unified
at 25% for all enterprises in Mainland China.

According to Caishui [2011] No.58 issued in July 2011, enterprises set up in the western region in the PRC
with major businesses falling within the Catalogue of Encouraged Industries in the Western Region are entitled
to a reduced corporate income tax (“CIT"”) rate of 15%.

Juteng (Neijiang) Communication Accessory Co., Ltd., which is a subsidiary of the Company in the Sichuan
province, and Tasun (Chongqing) Electronic Technology Co., Ltd. and Compal Electronic Technology (Chongging)
Co., Ltd., which are subsidiaries of the Company in the Chongging city, were entitled to enjoy the 15% CIT
preferential rate as their major businesses fall within the Catalogue of Encouraged Industries in the Western
Region.

DIVIDENDS
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
Proposed final — HK10 cents (2019: HK10 cents)
per ordinary share 120,001 116,634

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is based on the profit for the year attributable to
equity holders of the Company of HK$130,506,000 (2019: HK$145,913,000) and the weighted average
number of 862,413,185 (2019: 920,097,876) ordinary shares in issue excluding shares held under the share
award plan during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount is based on the profit for the year attributable to
equity holders of the Company of HK$130,506,000 (2019: HK$145,913,000). The weighted average number
of ordinary shares used in the calculation was 862,413,185 (2019: 920,097,876) ordinary shares in issue
excluding shares held under the share award plan during the year, as used in the basic earnings per share
calculation, and the weighted average number of 17,449,328 (2019: 5,808,914) ordinary shares assumed
to have been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into
ordinary shares.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2020

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Furniture,
fixtures

Land and Leasehold and office

buildings improvements  Machinery  equipment
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

31 December 2020

At 1 January 2020:

Motor Construction

vehicles
HK$'000

in progress
HK$'000

Total
HK$'000

Cost 4,400,721 7,544 8,368,894 1,362,442 10,169 288,844 14,438,614
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (1,571,881) (2,219)  (4,683,146) (999,419) (7.415) - (7,264,080)

Net carrying amount 2,828,840 5,325 3,685,748 363,023 2,754 288,844 7,174,534
At 1 January 2020, net of

accumulated depreciation

and impairment 2,828,840 5325 3,685,748 363,023 2,754 288,844 7,174,534
Additions 9,372 291 57,025 27,119 1,485 1,050,177 1,145,469
Transfers 132,704 - 608,840 91,001 1,035 (833,580) -
Disposals/write-off (11) - (5,039) (1,377) (79) (2,708) (9,214)
Depreciation provided during

the year (198,799) (638) (531,531) (199,550) (823) - (931,341)
Exchange realignment 178,803 131 217,827 50,040 278 31,774 478,853
At 31 December 2020, net of

accumulated depreciation

and impairment 2,950,909 5109 4,032,870 330,256 4,650 534,507 7,858,301
At 31 December 2020

Cost 4,832,762 8,020 9,522,906 1,596,102 12,903 534,507 16,507,200

Accumulated depreciation

and impairment (1,881,853) (2,911)  (5,490,036)  (1,265,846) (8,253) - (8,648,899)

Net carrying amount 2,950,909 5109 4,032,870 330,256 4,650 534,507 7,858,301
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2020

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Furniture,
fixtures

Land and Leasehold and office Motor ~ Construction
buildings  improvements Machinery ~ equipment vehicles in progress Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000

31 December 2019

At 1 January 2019:

Cost 4,450,062 6,673 8,262,651 1,336,290 11,312 195,729 14,262,717
Accumulated depreciation

and impairment (1,428,114) (1,609)  (4,275,974) (820,854) (8,102) - (6,534,653)

Net carrying amount 3,021,948 5,064 3,986,677 515,436 3,210 195,729 7,728,064

At 1 January 2019, net of
accumulated depreciation

and impairment 3,021,948 5,064 3,986,677 515,436 3,210 195,729 7,728,064
Additions 9,304 846 81,468 31,666 253 587,424 710,961
Transfers 71,041 - 310,589 99,303 251 (481,184) -
Disposals/write-off (1,418) - (27,484) (47,096) (208) (7,889) (84,095)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 1) (19,038) - (15,483) (49) - - (34,570)
Depreciation provided during

the year (200,668) (602) (586,200) (219,872) (690) - (1,008,032
Exchange realignment (52,329) 17 (63,819) (16,365) (62) (5236)  (137,794)

At 31 December 2019, net of
accumulated depreciation
and impairment 2,828,840 5325 3,685,748 363,023 2,754 288,844 7,174,534

At 31 December 2019:

Cost 4,400,721 7,544 8,368,894 1,362,442 10,169 288,844 14,438,614
Accumulated depreciation

and impairment (1,571,881) (2,219)  (4,683,146) (999,419) (7,415) - (7,264,080)

Net carrying amount 2,828,840 5,325 3,685,748 363,023 2,754 288,844 7,174,534

As at 31 December 2020, certain of the Group’s land and buildings with a net carrying amount of approximately
HK$21,140,000 (2019: HK$20,720,000) situated in the ROC were pledged to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group (note 25).

As at 31 December 2020, the application of property ownership certificates for certain buildings with a net
book value of HK$186,695,000 (2019: HK$166,616,000) was still in progress. In the opinion of the directors,
the risk of the Group for not being able to obtain the legal titles for the relevant land and buildings is low
and the Group will continue to pursue and discuss with the Ministry of Land and Resources of the PRC for
the final settlement and complete the ownership registration of the buildings.
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31 December 2020

15.

94

LEASES
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for certain of its office properties, machinery, motor vehicles and office
equipment used in its operations. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the leased land from
the owners with lease periods of 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be made under the terms of these
land leases. Leases of office properties generally have lease terms between 2 months and 36 months, while
motor vehicles generally have lease terms of 3 years. Machinery and office equipment generally have lease
terms of 12 months or less and/or are individually of low value.

(a)  Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and the movements during the year are as
follows:

Leasehold Office Motor

land  properties vehicles Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000

As at 1 January 2019 566,727 13 272 567,012
Additions - 5,083 - 5,083
Disposal of a subsidiary

(note 1) (1,420) - - (1,420)
Depreciation charge (12,897) (573) (105) (13,575)
Exchange realignment (10,905) - 1 (10,904)

As at 31 December 2019 and

1 January 2020 541,505 4,523 168 546,196
Additions 92,995 707 - 93,702
Depreciation charge (13,972) (2,035) (107) (16,114)
Exchange realignment 40,782 - - 40,782
As at 31 December 2020 661,310 3,195 61 664,566

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not pledge any interest in land to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group (2019: Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2020

15. LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)  Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during the year are as follows:

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

At 1 January 4,724 287
New leases 707 5,083
Accretion of interest recognised during the year 163 71
Payments (2,269) (720)
Exchange realignment 10 3
At 31 December 3,335 4,724

Analysed into:
Current portion 2,155 1,764
Non-current portion 1,180 2,960

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 37 to the financial statements.

(c)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as follows:

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
Interest on lease liabilities 163 71
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 16,114 13,575
Expense relating to short-term leases with remaining lease
terms ended on or before 31 December 2019
(included in administrative expenses) 2,092 2,821
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets
(included in administrative expenses) 117 78
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 18,486 16,545
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31 December 2020

15.

96

LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

(d)  Termination options

The Group had several lease contracts that included termination options. These options were negotiated
by management to provide flexibility in managing the leased-asset portfolio and they were aligned with
the Group’s business needs. Set out below were the undiscounted potential future rental payments
relating to periods following the exercise date of termination options that were not included in the
lease terms:

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

Termination options expected to be exercised
Payable within five years - 69

(e)  The total cash outflow for leases and future cash outflows relating to leases that have not yet
commenced are disclosed in notes 31(c) and 33(b), respectively, to the financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases part of its factory and machinery under operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases
generally require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the
then prevailing market conditions. Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was HK$24,643,000
(2019: HK$25,625,000), details of which are included in note 6 to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2020, the undiscounted lease payments receivable by the Group in future periods under
non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

Within one year 24,795 22,418
After one year but within two years 21,057 21,957
After two years but within three years 20,119 19,578
After three years but within four years 19,959 18,128
After four years but within five years 20,245 18,281
After five years 118,978 109,853
225,153 210,215

Ju Teng International Holdings Limited = Annual Report 2020



16.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2020

GOODWILL
HK$'000
Cost and net carrying amount at 1 January 2019 53,985
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 1) (1,497)

Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2019, 1 January 2020 and
31 December 2020 52,488

Impairment testing of goodwiill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to the manufacture and sale of notebook
computer casings cash-generating unit for impairment testing.

The recoverable amount of the manufacture and sale of notebook computer casings cash-generating unit has
been determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on a five-year financial
forecast approved by management. The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 16% (2019:
16%) and cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using a growth rate of 2.6% (2019: 3%).

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the manufacture and sale of notebook computer
casings cash-generating unit for 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019. The following describes each
key assumption on which management has based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing
of goodwill:

Forecasted gross margins — The basis used to determine the value assigned to the forecasted gross margins is
the average gross margins achieved in the year immediately before the forecast year, increased for expected
efficiency improvements, and expected market development.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant unit.

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would
not cause the cash-generating unit's recoverable amount to fall below its carrying amount.
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31 December 2020

17. DEFERRED TAX
Deferred tax assets

Losses available
for offsetting

against future Government
taxable profits subsidies Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Gross deferred tax assets at 1 January 2019 64,998 5,660 70,658
Deferred tax charged to the statement of profit or
loss during the year (note 11) (7,755) (38) (7,793)
Exchange realignment (1,094) (117) (1,211)

Gross deferred tax assets at 31 December 2019

and 1 January 2020 56,149 5,505 61,654
Deferred tax credited to the statement of profit or

loss during the year (note 11) - 2,208 2,208
Exchange realignment 3,738 491 4,229
Gross deferred tax assets at 31 December 2020 59,887 8,204 68,091

The Group had tax losses arising in Mainland China of approximately HK$663,033,000 (2019: HK$531,998,000)
that will expire in one to five years for offsetting against future taxable profits of the subsidiaries in which the
losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.
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17. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities

Gross deferred tax liabilities at
1 January 2019

Deferred tax charged to the
statement of profit or loss during
the year (note 11)

Deferred tax charged to equity
during the year

NOTES TO

Fair value
adjustments
arising from

acquisition of
subsidiaries
HK$°000

439

11

Fair value
adjustments
arising from

revaluation

of an equity
investment
designated at
fair value
through other
comprehensive
income
HK$’'000

1,755

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2020

Withholding
tax
HK$'000

60,000

Total
HK$'000

60,439

11

1,755

Gross deferred tax liabilities at
31 December 2019 and 1 January
2020

Deferred tax credited to equity
during the year

450

1,755

(509)

60,000

62,205

(509)

Gross deferred tax liabilities at
31 December 2020

450

1,246

60,000

61,696

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to

foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established
in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.
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17.

18.

19.

100

DEFERRED TAX (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China
for which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately HK$3,220,631,000 (2019:
HK$3,069,410,000) as at 31 December 2020. In the opinion of the directors, the Company is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and, accordingly, the Group has taken into consideration,
among others, the probability the temporary difference being reversed in the foreseeable future, and recognised
for withholding taxes that would be payable in the foreseeable future on distribution of unremitted earnings
by the Company’s subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.

INVENTORIES
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
Production materials 533,468 281,836
Work in progress 830,029 624,869
Finished goods 674,690 567,985
Moulds and consumable tools 254,217 182,845
2,292,404 1,657,535

TRADE RECEIVABLES

2020 2019

HK$°000 HK$'000

Trade receivables 3,980,850 3,148,870

Impairment (5,083) (1,909)
3,975,767 3,146,961

The general credit terms of the Group range from 60 days to 120 days. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2020

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An ageing analysis of the Group's trade receivables as at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice
date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

Within 3 months 2,704,435 2,317,879
4 to 6 months 1,078,759 818,294
7 to 12 months 192,573 10,788
3,975,767 3,146,961

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade receivables are as follows:

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

At beginning of year 1,909 1,400
Impairment (note 8) 3,174 509
At end of year 5,083 1,909

As at 31 December 2020, the increase in loss allowance was due to the increase in trade receivables which
were past due for 4 to 6 months.

As at 31 December 2019, the increase in loss allowance was due to the increase in ECLs which were caused
by the increase in expected credit loss rates.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision matrix to measure ECLs. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments with similar loss
patterns. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable
and supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due for more than
one year and are not subject to enforcement activity.
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19.

20.

102

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the Group's trade receivables using a
provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2020

Past due

1to 3 4to 6 7 to 12
Current months months months

Expected credit loss rate 0.07% 0.02% 8.56% 0% 0.13%
Gross carrying amount

(HK$'000) 3,299,099 650,487 30,894 370 3,980,850
ECLs (HK$'000) 2,309 130 2,644 - 5,083

As at 31 December 2019

Past due

1to 3 4 to 6 7 to 12

Current months months months

Expected credit loss rate 0.06% 0.02% 551% 19.73% 0.06%
Gross carrying amount

(HK$'000) 2,681,855 463,818 2,974 223 3,148,870
ECLs (HK$'000) 1,608 93 164 44 1,909

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

Prepayments 81,560 53,713
Deposits and other receivables 288,735 151,334
370,295 205,047

The financial assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for which there were no recent history
of default and past due amounts. The ECLs are estimated by applying a loss rate approach with reference to
the historical loss record of the Group. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions, as appropriate. As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the ECLs
were assessed to be minimal.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2020

EQUITY INVESTMENT DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
Equity investment designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Overseas listed equity investment, at fair value
Paragon Technologies Co., Ltd. 24,218 26,841

The above equity investment was irrevocably designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
as the Group considers this investment to be strategic in nature.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the gross loss in respect of the Group’s equity investment designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income recognised in other comprehensive income amounted to
HK$2,515,000 (2019: gross gain of HK$16,170,000).

In the opinion of the directors, the equity investment designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income is not expected to be realised within 12 months after the end of the reporting period. Accordingly,

the investment is classified as a non-current asset in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The market value of the Group’s listed equity investment at the date of approval of these financial statements
was approximately HK$23,234,000.
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31 December 2020
22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED AND RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES

2020 2019

HK$’'000 HK$'000

Cash and bank balances, including time deposits with original

maturity less than 3 months 966,985 1,175,896
Less: Pledged and restricted bank balances (38.311) (33,824)
Cash and cash equivalents 928,674 1,142,072

Renminbi (“"RMB") is not a freely convertible currency in Mainland China and the remittance of funds out of
Mainland China is subject to the exchange restriction imposed by the PRC government. Companies incorporated
in the ROC are subject to certain controls in the remittance of funds out of the ROC up to a certain limit for
each calendar year. At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash equivalents which were subject
to exchange and/or remittance restrictions in Mainland China or the ROC amounted to approximately
HK$424,847,000 (2019: HK$515,041,000).

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and three months depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

23. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on terms of 60 to 120 days.

An ageing analysis of the Group's trade and bills payables as at the end of the reporting period, based on
the invoice date, is as follows:

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

Within 3 months 1,144,505 862,024
4 to 6 months 238,825 186,652
7 to 12 months 10,047 9,465
Over 1 year 6,136 6,555
1,399,513 1,064,696
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31 December 2020

24. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
Deferred income (note 26) 873 14,747
Contract liabilities* 39,436 41,151
Other payables* 657,391 437,172
Compensation income received in advance 550,658 368,775
Accruals 857,938 704,521
2,106,296 1,566,366

# Contract liabilities represent receipts in advance from customers for the sale of goods.The contract liabilities as at 1 January

2019 amounted to approximately HK$35,097,000. The decrease (2019: increase) in contract liabilities in 2020 was mainly
due to a decrease (2019: increase) in advances received from customers in relation to the sales of goods at the end of
the year.

#’* Other payables are non-interest-bearing.

25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

Effective Effective

interest interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000

Current

Syndicated bank loans - - - 3.57 2020 584,025

Other bank loans 0.70-2.58 2021 3,061,696 1.40-4.43 2020 2,285,823
3,061,696 2,869,848

Non-current

Syndicated bank loans 1.45 2022-2025 1,364,528 3.57 2021 584,025

Other bank loans 1.40-3.19 2022-2027 66,423  1.40-3.31 2021-2027 320,974
1,430,951 904,999
4,492,647 3,774,847
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31 December 2020

25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
Repayable:
Within one year 3,061,696 2,869,848
In the second year 196,108 896,973
In the third to fifth years, inclusive 1,232,598 4,403
Beyond five years 2,245 3,623
4,492,647 3,774,847
Notes:
€)] Certain of the Group’s bank loans were secured by:

(i) the pledge of certain of the Group’s land and buildings situated in the ROC, which had a net carrying value at
the end of the reporting period of HK$21,140,000 (2019: HK$20,720,000); and

(ii) corporate guarantees executed by the Company to the extent of HK$3,334,658,000 (2019: HK$3,177,447,000)
as at the end of the reporting period.

(b) The Group’s bank loans with carrying amounts of HK$4,042,987,000 (2019: HK$3,663,049,000), HK$25,019,000 (2019:

HK$33,365,000) and HK$424,641,000 (2019: 78,433,000) are denominated in United States dollars (“US$"), New Taiwan
dollars (“NT$") and RMB, respectively.

26. DEFERRED INCOME

2020 2019
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Deferred income related to the transfer of
production equipment (i) - 14,081
Deferred income related to the government subsidies
for acquisition of assets (ii) 47,767 36,312
Carrying amount as at 31 December 47,767 50,393
Current portion (note 24) (873) (14,747)
Non-current portion 46,894 35,646
Notes:
(i) Deferred income represented the assignment and transfer of rights, titles and obligations for certain production equipment
from an independent third party.
(ii) Deferred income represented government subsidies relating to acquisition of assets received by certain of the Group's

subsidiaries in Mainland China.
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31 December 2020

SHARE CAPITAL

Shares
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
Authorised:
2,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid:
1,200,008,445 (2019: 1,166,342,445) shares of HK$0.1 each 120,001 116,634

A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital and share premium account is as follows:

Number of
shares in issue Share

of HK$0.1 Share premium
each capital account Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

At 1 January 2019, 31 December
2019 and 1 January 2020 1,166,342,445 116,634 85,267 201,901

Issue of shares in connection with
the exercise of share options

(note (i) 33,666,000 3,367 46,459 49,826

Transfer from employee share-based

compensation reserve - - 56,193 56,193
At 31 December 2020 1,200,008,445 120,001 187,919 307,920
Note:
(i) During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company issued a total of 33,666,000 shares at an exercise price of

HK$1.48 per share pursuant to the exercise of options granted under the share option scheme of the Company, resulting
in the issue of 33,666,000 shares of HK$0.1 each for a total cash consideration, before expenses, of HK$49,826,000.
A total of HK$56,193,000 was transferred from the employee share-based compensation reserve to the share premium
account upon the exercise of the share options.

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share options granted are included in note 28 to the
financial statements.
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28.

108

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS

(a)

Share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants of the Scheme include the Company’s directors, including independent non-executive
directors, other employees of the Group, suppliers of goods or services to the Group, customers of
the Group, persons that provide research, development or other technological support to the Group,
the Group’s shareholders and the advisers or consultants of the Group and participants who have
contributed or may contribute to the development and growth of the Group.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme
is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 30% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. The maximum number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible participant in the
Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in
a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to
any of their associates, are subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s shares at
the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days from the date of offer, upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the directors, which period may commence from the date of the
offer of the share options, and ends on a date which is not later than 10 years from the date of offer
of the share options.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the directors, but shall not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as quoted on the daily quotation sheet on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange on the date of the offer of the share options; and (ii) the average of the
closing prices of the Company’s shares as quoted on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value
of the Company’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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28. EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)
(@) Share option scheme (continued)

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme during the year:

2020 2019

Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options exercise price of options

HK$ per share HK$ per share
At 1 January 1.48 73,448,000 1.48 78,286,000
Exercised 1.48 (33,666,000) - -
Forfeited 1.48 (4,152,000) 1.48 (4,838,000)
At 31 December 1.48 35,630,000 1.48 73,448,000

The weighted average closing share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the
year ended 31 December 2020 was HK$2.43 per share.

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options outstanding as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

2020

Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
HK$ per share

232,400 1.48 7-11-2018 to 31-8-2024

582,400 1.48 7-11-2019 to 31-8-2024

586,400 1.48 7-11-2020 to 31-8-2024
17,114,400 1.48 7-11-2021 to 31-8-2024
17,114,400 1.48 7-11-2022 to 31-8-2024
35,630,000

2019

Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
HK$ per share

374,400 1.48 7-11-2018 to 31-8-2024
18,268,400 1.48 7-11-2019 to 31-8-2024
18,268,400 1.48 7-11-2020 to 31-8-2024
18,268,400 1.48 7-11-2021 to 31-8-2024
18,268,400 1.48 7-11-2022 to 31-8-2024
73,448,000
* The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other

similar changes in the Company’s share capital.
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28.

110

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Share option scheme (continued)

The Group recognised a share option expense of HK$6,365,000 (2019: HK$21,001,000) during the
year ended 31 December 2020 in respect of share options granted/replaced in the prior years.

The total of 33,666,000 share options exercised during the year ended 31 December 2020 resulted
in the issue of 33,666,000 ordinary shares of the Company and new share capital of HK$3,367,000
and share premium of HK$46,459,000 (before issue expenses), as further detailed in note 27 to the
financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 35,630,000 share options outstanding under
the Scheme, representing approximately 3.0% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that date. The
exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, under the present capital structure of the
Company, result in the issue of 35,630,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional
share capital of HK$3,563,000 and share premium of HK$49,169,000 (before issue expenses).

Share award plan

The Board approved the adoption of the new share award plan (the “Share Award Plan”) with effect
from 19 May 2017. The purpose of the Share Award Plan is to (i) recognise and reward the contribution
of certain eligible participants to the growth and development of the Group through an award of shares
and to give incentives thereto in order to retain them for the continual operation and development of
the Group; and (i) attract suitable personnel for further development of the Group. The vesting period
of the awarded shares is determined by the Board.

Under the Share Award Plan, a total of 77,162,000 (2019: 50,120,000) shares of the Company were
purchased by Bank of Communications Trustee Limited (the “Trustee”) during the year ended 31
December 2020. As at 31 December 2020, a total of 354,345,774 (2019: 277,183,774) shares were
held by the Trustee under the Share Award Plan.
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31 December 2020

29. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the prior and current years are presented
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 49 and 50 of the financial statements.

30. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests are set out below:

2020 2019

Percentage of equity interest held by non-controlling interests:

Wah Yuen and its subsidiaries (“Wah Yuen Group”) 40.72% 40.72%
Mindforce and its subsidiaries (“Mindforce Group”) 29% 29%
2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$ 000

Profit/(loss) for the year allocated to non-controlling interests:
Wah Yuen Group 39,688 74,188
Mindforce Group (22,233) (12,875)

Accumulated balances of non-controlling interests
at the reporting date:
Wah Yuen Group 1,509,668 1,336,741
Mindforce Group 150,680 162,472
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31 December 2020

30. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

112

(continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts
disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations:

Wah Yuen Mindforce
Group Group
HK$'000 HK$'000

2020
Revenue 3,048,661 2,283,274
Total expenses (2,951,195) (2,359,941)
Profit/(loss) for the year 97,466 (76,667)
Total comprehensive income/(expenses) for the year 424,673 (38,802)
Current assets 3,513,987 1,278,236
Non-current assets 2,426,655 808,717
Current liabilities (2,216,252) (926,244)
Non-current liabilities (25,365) (641,871)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities (108,846) 121,030
Net cash flows used in investing activities (425,040) (16,394)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities 258,829 (102,165)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (275,057) 2,471

WELRRTE Mindforce
Group Group
HK$'000 HK$'000

2019
Revenue 2,946,066 2,136,707
Total expenses (2,763,909) (2,181,104)
Profit/(loss) for the year 182,157 (44,397)
Total comprehensive income/(expenses) for the year 89,997 (51,255)
Current assets 3,133,158 1,536,049
Non-current assets 2,136,543 826,112
Current liabilities (1,815,361) (1,189,971)
Non-current liabilities (179,988) (614,550)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities 342,257 (96,807)
Net cash flows used in investing activities (185,692) (35,275)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities (220,489) 136,646
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (63,924) 4,564
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31 December 2020

31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(@) Major non-cash transaction

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
HK$707,000 (2019: HK$5,083,000) and HK$707,000 (2019: HK$5,083,000), respectively, in respect
of lease arrangements for its office properties.

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
2020

Lease Interest-bearing

liabilities bank borrowings

HK$’000 HK$’000

At 1 January 2020 4,724 3,774,847
Changes from financing cash flows (2,106) 736,629
New leases 707 -
Accretion of interest recognised during the year 163 -
Interest paid classified as operating cash flows (163) -
Foreign exchange movement 10 (18,829)
At 31 December 2020 3,335 4,492,647

2019

Lease Interest-bearing

liabilities  bank borrowings

HK$'000 HK$'000

At 1 January 2019 287 4,144,267
Changes from financing cash flows (720) (339,592)
New leases 5,083 -
Accretion of interest recognised during the year 71 -
Foreign exchange movement 3 (29,828)
At 31 December 2019 4,724 3,774,847

Annual Report 2020  Ju Teng International Holdings Limited 113



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(¢) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of cash flows is as follows:

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

Within operating activities 2,372 2,970
Within financing activities 2,106 720
4,478 3,690

32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities.

33. COMMITMENTS

(a)  The Group had the following capital commitments as at the end of the reporting period:

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000

Contracted, but not provided for:
Buildings 349,964 49,870
Machinery and office equipment 228,173 243,114
Total capital commitments 578,137 292,984

(b)  The Group had various lease contracts that had not yet commenced as at 31 December 2019.

As at 31 December 2019, the future lease payments for these non-cancellable lease contracts were
HK$1,198,808 due within one year and HK$426,420 due in the second to fifth years, inclusive.
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31 December 2020

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had the
following transactions with related parties during the year:

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

Rental expenses/lease payments paid to:

Ms. Lin Mei-Li (Note (i) - 62

Ms. Cheng Shao-Wen (Note (ii)) 25 142

Mr. Cheng Yung-Kang (Note (iii)) 25 50

RAFR AT (Note (iv)) 41 -
Notes:

@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Ms. Lin Mei-Li is the spouse of Mr. Cheng Li-Yu, a director of the Company. The rentals were determined at
rates mutually agreed between the relevant parties. The Group entered into an agreement with Ms. Lin Mei-Li
on 1 January 2020 to lease an office for terms of 2 years at rates mutually agreed between the relevant parties.
Right-of-use asset of approximately HK$62,000 and lease liability of approximately HK$62,000 were recognised in
respect of such lease at 31 December 2020. During the year, depreciation of the right-of-use asset of approximately
HK$61,000 and interest expenses on the lease liability of approximately HK$3,000 were charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Ms. Cheng Shao-Wen is the daughter of Mr. Cheng Li-Yu, a director of the Company. The rentals were determined
at rates mutually agreed between the relevant parties. In addition to the lease payments for the short-term lease
to Ms. Cheng Shao-Wen, the Group entered into an agreement with Ms. Cheng Shao-Wen on 1 January 2020 to
lease an office for terms of 2 years at rates mutually agreed between the relevant parties. Right-of-use asset of
approximately HK$117,000 and lease liability of approximately HK$119,000 were recognised in respect of such
lease at 31 December 2020. During the year, depreciation of the right-of-use asset of approximately HK$115,000
and interest expenses on the lease liability of approximately HK$5,000 were charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

Mr. Cheng Yung-Kang is the son of Mr. Cheng Li-Yu, a director of the Company. The rentals were determined at
rates mutually agreed between the relevant parties. In addition to the lease payments for the short-term lease to
Mr. Cheng Yung-Kang, the Group entered into an agreement with Mr. Cheng Yung-Kang on 1 January 2020 to
lease a staff quarter for terms of 2 years at rates mutually agreed between the relevant parties. Right-of-use asset
of approximately HK$34,000 and lease liability of approximately HK$34,000 were recognised in respect of such
lease at 31 December 2020. During the year, depreciation of the right-of-use asset of approximately HK$33,000
and interest expenses on the lease liability of approximately HK$2,000 were charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

Mr. Cheng Yung-Kang is the director and shareholder of RIEBMR A E]. The rentals were determined at rates
mutually agreed between the relevant parties. In addition to the lease payments for the short-term lease to K&
[ 72 7], the Group entered into an agreement with KFEHFR A 7] on 1 March 2020 to lease an office for terms of
1 year and 10 months at rates mutually agreed between the relevant parties. Right-of-use asset of approximately
HK$154,000 and lease liability of approximately HK$156,000 were recognised in respect of such lease at 31
December 2020. During the year, depreciation of the right-of-use asset of approximately HK$127,000 and interest
expenses on the lease liability of approximately HK$6,000 were charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

The above transactions also constitute connected transactions or continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)  Compensation of key management personnel of the Group (excluding directors’ remuneration):

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

Short term employee benefits 9,433 10,216
Employee share-based compensation expenses 3,237 5,141
Total compensation paid to key management personnel 12,670 15,357

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 9 to the financial statements.

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period

are as follows:

2020

Financial assets

Financial
assets at
amortised
cost
HK$’000

Equity investment designated at fair value

Equity
investment
designated at
fair value

through other
comprehensive
income
HK$'000

Total
HK$'000

through other comprehensive income - 24,218 24,218
Trade receivables 3,975,767 - 3,975,767
Financial assets included in prepayments,

deposits and other receivables 288,735 - 288,735
Pledged and restricted bank balances 38,311 - 38,311
Cash and cash equivalents 928,674 - 928,674

5,231,487 24,218 5,255,705
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period
are as follows: (continued)

2020 (continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
HK$'000
Trade and bills payables 1,399,513
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals 685,714
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 4,492,647
Lease liabilities 3,335
6,581,209

2019

Financial assets

Equity

investment

designated at

Financial fair value
assets at through other

amortised comprehensive

cost income Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Equity investment designated at fair value

through other comprehensive income - 26,841 26,841
Trade receivables 3,146,961 - 3,146,961
Financial assets included in prepayments,

deposits and other receivables 151,334 - 151,334
Pledged and restricted bank balances 33,824 - 33,824
Cash and cash equivalents 1,142,072 - 1,142,072

4,474,191 26,841 4,501,032
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period
are as follows: (continued)

2019 (continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial
liabilities at

amortised cost
HK$'000

Trade and bills payables 1,064,696
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals 452,462
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 3,774,847
Lease liabilities 4,724

5,296,729

36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amount and fair value of the Group’s financial instrument, other than those with carrying amounts
that reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

Carrying amount Fair value

2020 2019 2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

Financial asset
Equity investment designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income:
Overseas listed equity investment,
at fair value 24,218 26,841 24,218 26,841

118 Ju Teng International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020



36.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of trade receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, pledged and restricted bank balances, cash and cash equivalents, trade and
bills payables, financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals and the current portion of interest-
bearing bank borrowings approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of
these instruments.

The Group's finance department headed by the chief financial officer is responsible for determining the policies
and procedures for the fair value measurement of financial instruments. The finance department reports
directly to the chief financial officer and the audit committee. At each reporting date, the finance department
analyses the movements in the values of financial instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief financial officer.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-bearing bank borrowings and lease liabilities have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently available for instruments with
similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The changes in fair value as a result of the Group’s own
non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank borrowings as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019

were assessed to be insignificant.

The fair value of the listed equity investment was based on a quoted market price.
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31 December 2020

36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value
As at 31 December 2020

Fair value measurement using
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000

Equity investment designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income:
Overseas listed equity investment 24,218 - - 24,218

As at 31 December 2019

Fair value measurement using
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (RVE ) (Level 3) Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Equity investment designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income:
Overseas listed equity investment 26,841 - - 26,841

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial liabilities (2019: Nil).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing bank borrowings, pledged and restricted
bank balances, and cash and short term deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade
receivables, other receivables, trade and bills payables and other payables and accruals, which arise directly
from its operations.

Itis, and has been throughout the year under review, the Group’s policy that no trading in financial instruments
shall be undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit
risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s debt
obligations denominated in US$ with floating interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the interest rate of the
United States dollar, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax.

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit
in basis points before tax
HK$'000
2020
United States dollar 50 (20,215)
United States dollar (50) 20,215
2019
United States dollar 50 (18,315)
United States dollar (50) 18,315
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37.

122

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating
units in currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.

The Group's exposure to market risk for changes in foreign currency exchange rates relates primarily to certain
trade receivables, trade and bills payables, certain cash and cash equivalents, and interest-bearing bank
borrowings in currencies other than the functional currencies of the Group’s operating subsidiaries.

Since most of the Group’s revenue is denominated in US$ and most of the Group’s expenses are denominated
in RMB, the appreciation of RMB has negative effects on the Group’s profitability.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the Renminbi exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax.

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in exchange in profit
rate before tax
% HK$'000
2020
If US$ strengthens against RMB 8.87 294,982
If US$ weakens against RMB (8.87) (294,982)
2019
If US$ strengthens against RMB 7.13 171,716
If US$ weakens against RMB (7.13) (171,716)
Credit risk

The carrying amount of trade receivables included in the consolidated statement of financial position represents
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to the Group’s trade receivables. The Group performs
ongoing credit evaluations of its customers’ financial conditions and requires no collateral from its customers.

The Group has a significant concentration of credit risk in relation to trade receivables as the trade receivables
due from the five largest customers accounted for 85% (2019: 76%) of the Group’s trade receivables at the
end of the reporting period. The loss allowance for impairment of trade receivables was based upon a review
of the expected collectability of all trade receivables.
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31 December 2020

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due information unless other information is available without
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as at 31 December. The amounts presented are gross
carrying amounts for financial assets.

As at 31 December 2020

12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs

Simplified
Stage 1 approach Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Trade receivables* - 3,980,850 3,980,850
Financial assets included in prepayments,

deposits and other receivables

— Normal** 288,735 - 288,735
Pledged and restricted bank balances

— Not yet past due 38,311 - 38,311
Cash and cash equivalents

— Not yet past due 928,674 - 928,674

1,255,720 3,980,850 5,236,570
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)
As at 31 December 2019

12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs

Simplified
Stage 1 approach Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Trade receivables* - 3,148,870 3,148,870
Financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables

— Normal** 151,334 - 151,334
Pledged and restricted bank balances
— Not yet past due 33,824 - 33,824
Cash and cash equivalents
— Not yet past due 1,142,072 - 1,142,072
1,327,230 3,148,870 4,476,100
* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach for impairment, information based on the provision

matrix is disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements.
*x The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables is considered to be

“normal” when they are not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets had a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are
disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements.

124 Ju Teng International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2020

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers

the maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and projected cash
flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank loans and lease liabilities. In addition, banking facilities have been put in place for contingency purposes.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:

2020
On demand or 2to5 Over

within 1 year years 5 years Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Trade and bills payables 1,399,513 - - 1,399,513

Lease liabilities 2,242 1,197 - 3,439
Financial liabilities included in other

payables and accruals 685,714 - - 685,714

Interest-bearing bank borrowings 3,098,374 1,487,105 2,286 4,587,765

5,185,843 1,488,302 2,286 6,676,431

2019
On demand or 2to5 Over

within 1 year years 5 years Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

Trade and bills payables 1,064,696 - - 1,064,696

Lease liabilities 1,913 3,058 - 4,971
Financial liabilities included in other

payables and accruals 452,462 - - 452,462

Interest-bearing bank borrowings 2,925,843 919,907 3,739 3,849,489

4,444,914 922,965 3,739 5,371,618
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Equity price risk
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities decrease as a result of changes in the levels
of equity indices and the value of individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from
an individual equity investment classified as an equity investment designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (note 21) as at 31 December 2020. The Group’s listed investment is listed on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange (the “TSEC”) and valued at the quoted market price at the end of the reporting period.

The market equity index for the following stock exchange, at the close of business of the nearest trading
day in the year to the end of the reporting periods, and its respective highest and lowest points during the
year were as follows:

31 December High/low 31 December High/low

2020 2020 2019 2019

ROC — TSEC Weighted Index 14,733  14,760/8,524 11,997  12,126/9,319

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the fair value of the equity
investment, with all other variables held constant and before any impact on deferred tax, based on its carrying
amount at the end of the reporting period. For the purpose of this analysis, for the equity investment designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income, the impact is deemed to be on the fair value reserve.

Carrying Increase/
amount of (decrease) Increase/

equity in equity (decrease)
investment price in equity*
HK$'000 % HK$'000

2020
Investment listed in:
ROC - Equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income 24,218 48.56 11,761
24,218 (48.56) (11,761)

2019
Investment listed in:
ROC - Equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income 26,841 148.55 39,873
26,841 (148.55) (39,873)

* Excluding retained profits
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2020

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is calculated as the total bank borrowings over the
total assets. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were as follows:

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

Total bank borrowings 4,492,647 3,774,847
Total non-current assets 8,850,736 7,928,477
Total current assets 7,605,451 6,185,439
Total assets 16,456,187 14,113,916
Gearing ratio 27% 27%
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at the end of the reporting period is

as follows:
2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$000
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investments in subsidiaries 1,074,411 1,069,024
CURRENT ASSETS
Due from subsidiaries 4,370,934 4,371,528
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 394 244
Restricted bank balances 5,114 -
Cash and cash equivalents 4,841 28,337
Total current assets 4,381,283 4,400,109
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Due to a subsidiary 1,685,879 1,480,126
Other payables and accruals 5,307 5,782
Total current liabilities 1,691,186 1,485,908
NET CURRENT ASSETS 2,690,097 2,914,201
Net assets 3,764,508 3,983,225
EQUITY
Issued capital 120,001 116,634
Reserves (note) 3,644,507 3,866,591
Total equity 3,764,508 3,983,225
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31 December 2020

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (continued)
Note:

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

Shares
held under Employee
Share share  share-based
premium award compensation Other Retained
account plan reserve reserves profits Total
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Balance at 1 January 2019 85,267 (556,223) 81,763 316,058 4,121,968 4,048,833
Total comprehensive expenses for the year - - - - (10,126) (10,126)
Purchase of shares under the
share award plan - (100,729) - - - (100,729)
Dividend received under the
share award plan - 24,246 - - - 24,246
Share-based compensation arrangements - - 21,001 - - 21,001

2018 final dividend - - - (116,634) (116,634)

At 31 December 2019

and 1 January 2020 85,267 (632,706) 102,764 316,058 3,995,208 3,866,591
Total comprehensive expenses for the year - - - - (9,714) (9,714)
Issue of shares in connection withthe

exercise of share options 102,652 - (56,193) - - 46,459
Purchase of shares under the

share award plan - (178,330) - - - (178,330)
Dividend received under the

share award plan - 29,770 - - - 29,7170
Share-based compensation arrangements - - 6,365 - - 6,365

2019 final dividend - - - (116,634) (116,634)

As 31 December 2020 187,919 (781,266) 52,936 316,058 3,868,860 3,644,507

The employee share-based compensation reserve comprises the fair value of share options granted which are yet to be
exercised, as further explained in the accounting policy of share-based payments in note 3.3 to the financial statements.
The amount will be (i) transferred to the share premium account when the related options are exercised; (ii) transferred
to retained profits should the related options expire; or (iii) credited to the statement of profit or loss should the related
options be forfeited.

39. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 17 March
2021.
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